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Our strategic pillars
PRE-EMINENCE

RELEVANCE

REACH

Preserving our designation.

Keeping ahead in a changing world.

Extending our influence.

Our CA Program is renowned for its

We are broadening our range of

As a global organisation, we have a

rigour and quality and for producing

products and services to meet ever-

strong voice on issues relating to the

individuals known for their innovative

changing business and community

profession and business community,

thinking and superior analytical skills.

needs – and increasing accessibility for

and in upholding the public interest.

The Code of Ethics that our members

members around the world. As roles

adhere to is respected and valued by

continue to become more specialised,

business leaders around the world.

products and services will be tailored

Our members’ commitment to lifelong

to facilitate our members’ career

learning ensures that their expertise

progression.

remains relevant.
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Annual General Meeting (AGM)
The 89th Annual General Meeting of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand will be held at our Wellington
office – Chartered Accountants House, Level 7, 50 Customhouse Quay, Wellington, New Zealand – at
4.30pm NZT on Wednesday 29 November 2017.

About us
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is a professional body comprised of over 117,000 diverse, talented and financially astute
members who utilise their skills every day to make a difference for businesses the world over.
Members are known for their professional integrity, principled judgment, financial discipline and a forward-looking approach to business, which
contributes to the prosperity of our nations.
We focus on the education and lifelong learning of our members, and engage in advocacy and thought leadership in areas of public interest
that influence the economy and domestic and international markets.
We are a member of the International Federation of Accountants, and are connected globally through the Global Accounting Alliance and
Chartered Accountants Worldwide networks, which bring together leading public accounting organisations in Australia, Canada, England,
Wales, Hong Kong, Ireland, Japan, New Zealand, Scotland, South Africa and USA to support and promote over 1 million Chartered Accountants
in more than 180 countries.
We also have a strategic alliance with the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). The alliance represents more than 800,000
current and next generation accounting professionals across 181 countries. It is one of the largest accounting alliances in the world providing the
full range of accounting qualifications to students and business.
*Please note all financial numbers are in AUD unless stated otherwise.
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Our purpose

EDUCATE

SERVE

CONNECT

INNOVATE

To support the development of our

To serve our members, the profession

To provide a forum for our global

To help shape the prosperity of our

future members and equip them

and our communities by upholding

membership of 117,000 business

nations by stimulating debate, sharing

with skills that will contribute to the

professional standards, providing

professionals to share ideas, technical

fresh ideas and facilitating discussions

success of business communities, and

principled leadership and contributing

knowledge and sharp thinking through

that lead to new approaches and

economies around the world. We are

to a sustainable and prosperous

a wide range of formal and

tangible results for our members,

also committed to providing lifelong

future for all.

informal networks.

business and the wider community.

learning opportunities for our current
members that keep pace with, and
anticipate changes in, the accounting
and wider business environment.
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Chair’s report
As a member organisation, we’re keenly aware of our responsibility to
help members thrive. As the impacts of megatrends like globalisation,
automation and new technology affect our profession, we’re seeking
new ways to ensure members have the skills and resources needed
to prosper.
This year, we have strengthened the foundations we’ve put
in place over the past few years, to better serve members.
We’ve made significant investments in our infrastructure
and programmes, making us more efficient, responsive and
relevant – and helping maintain the pre-eminence of your
CA designation.
We’ve continued to make our CA Program and education
offering future-ready, with more updated digital content
available online through the CA Education Store. This means
members can advance their skills at the time and place they
choose, take control of their learning, and stay up to date and
relevant in a changing world.
We’ve also marked the first anniversary of our strategic
alliance with ACCA, connecting members with global peers.
The alliance remains one of our most important strategic
initiatives, delivering more thought leadership, recognition
and educational opportunities for our members.

We are very conscious of the recent moves by member
bodies in England and Wales, and Scotland to reduce the
years of experience members of selected other bodies
need before they can be considered for full membership. In
an age where experience is acquired more rapidly, lifelong
learning is growing in importance, and portfolio careers
are commonplace. Continued insistence on lengthy work
experience looks increasingly less relevant.

We’ve also marked the first
anniversary of our strategic
alliance with ACCA,
connecting members with
global peers.

We’re continuing to make our voice heard through our
thought leadership programme future[inc] and our policy
and advocacy work. This year’s commentary on both the
Australian and New Zealand budgets helped confirm us
as a credible and trusted voice in business and finance.
Meanwhile, our work on the liability capping legislation in
Tasmania has delivered a tangible benefit for accountants
in that State.
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This year, we’ve continued to
invest in initiatives we believe
are critical to supporting our
members into the future.
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At the same time, we’re reaching out to future members
to show them the potential of a career as a Chartered
Accountant. We’ve expanded our Mentor Exchange
programme, bringing more new and established members
together to learn and grow. And while our Quality Review
process is not new, it remains an important means of helping
members meet and take pride in our rigorous standards –
maintaining the integrity of our profession and brand.
This year, we’ve continued to invest in initiatives we believe
are critical to supporting our members into the future.
This means we’re reporting a deficit in this year’s financial
report. We remain on track to return to surplus in 2018, when
the bulk of our projects will have moved into a ‘business as
usual’ phase.
As we mark the end of the financial year, I would like to take
the opportunity to acknowledge and thank our former CEO,
Lee White FCA. Lee oversaw the successful merger between
the Australia and New Zealand institutes, and led our
transformation into a strong and united member body.
While he has left his position at Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, he remains connected to the
organisation as one of our most esteemed Fellows – and we
wish him all the very best for his future.

On behalf of the Board, I want to acknowledge the efforts of
our staff, and of all members who have voluntarily given time
to further our member body and profession. This passion and
commitment are part of what makes us special.
I would also like to welcome Rick Ellis as the new Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand CEO. Under his
direction, we look forward to the next phase of our
transformation to an organisation that will lead the
profession into the future, with a steadfast focus on
our members.
We are ever mindful that, as your member body, we are
here for the sole purpose of serving your needs. So, if you
have any feedback on this report, or how we can be of
better service to you, please get in touch with us at
annualreport@charteredaccountantsanz.com.

Murray Jack FCA Chair
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President’s report
When I think about Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand, it’s not the organisation itself that first comes
to mind. Instead, it’s the many individuals who make up our
membership, and who are connected by our shared professional
qualifications and commitment to upholding our profession.
In my time as President, I’ve been lucky enough to spend time
with members and hear your stories – who you are, your
aspirations, and what collectively we need from our member
body. One thing that these conversations have reinforced
for me is just how diverse our membership is: we range from
sole practitioners in country towns to Big 4 consultants,
from students to CEOs. We’re made up of different genders,
ethnicities and cultures, living in different countries around the
globe – and we each have our own personal ambitions and
professional goals.
As such, I believe we need to continue to celebrate our
diversity today and the strength it delivers for our profession.
At the same time attracting a diverse mix of people to take our
profession into the future should remain a priority.

The launch of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand’s inclusion framework, and our ongoing support
for groups like Indigenous Accountants Australia (IAA) and Ngā
Kaitatau Māori o Aotearoa (NKMoA), are important strategies
which can help us achieve this goal.
As our profession faces new challenges from technology and
globalisation, we need to develop the skills to adapt and evolve
the ‘how’ of the way we do our work. But the ‘what’ – to provide
trusted insights and services – and the ‘why’ – to contribute
to the prosperity of our clients and communities – I believe will
remain unchanged. In our role as trusted business advisers
to businesses and communities, we have evolved from using
the abacus and six-column cashbook, to Excel and automated
programmes. But while the tools have changed, the value we
add, and the relationships we hold, have remained constant.

Over the past twelve months,
it has been my privilege to be
part of member events that
recognise the contribution
of our members at a
grassroots level.
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I urge us all, as members to
share in the benefits of our
membership and continue to
shape our organisation and
profession into the future.
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Over the past twelve months, it has been my privilege to be
part of member events that recognise the contribution of our
members at a grassroots level. I’ve shared in key member
milestones, welcomed new Chartered Accountants into the
fold, and seen new Fellows recognised for their outstanding
contributions to the profession.
I’ve also seen proof that, by working together, we can achieve
so much more than when we work alone. The change to the
liability capping legislation in Tasmania is just one example
of the difference a group of engaged members can make.
This change only affects a small group of our members.
However, the achievement of this advisory group, supported
by Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s
Leadership and Advocacy team, is something we can all be
proud of – and is indicative of the significant and small wins
our dedicated staff and member representatives achieve
each week.

On a personal note, I’d like to add that it’s been a pleasure
working with Vice Presidents Jane Stanton and Stephen
Walker this year, as well as my colleagues on the Council.
Having the opportunity to see the inner workings of our
Board, it’s very clear that we are part of an organisation that
has its members’ interests at its heart. As such, I urge us all,
as members, to share in the benefits of our membership
and continue to shape our organisation and profession into
the future.

Cassandra Crowley FCA President
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Introducing your new CEO
RICK ELLIS

In August 2017 Rick Ellis joined Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand as its new CEO, replacing outgoing CEO
Lee White FCA.
Rick comes to Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand from the National Museum of New Zealand
Te Papa Tongarewa in Wellington, where he was responsible
for transforming New Zealand’s iconic cultural institution and
leading tourism destination.
After graduating with a BCom from the University of Auckland
in 1976, he held senior executive roles in the IT industry,
working for US multinationals for over 25 years in Australia,
the UK and New Zealand. Career highlights include his tenure
as Group Executive of Telstra Media in Sydney and CEO of
Television New Zealand in Auckland.

“I’m excited to join Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand – it’s great to be part of an organisation that
represents business leaders who are instrumental in building
the success of businesses, communities and economies.”
“The organisation has been through some great changes to
advance its support to members in an ever-changing world.”

I’m looking forward to
supporting our members
around the world to achieve
even more in the future.

“I’m looking forward to building on the excellent foundations
that are in place and supporting our members around the
world to achieve even more in the future.”

Rick is looking forward to taking Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand into its next chapter.
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Financial summary
In 2017, the consolidated financial result is a deficit of $6.77 million. This reflects our ongoing investment
in technology and other initiatives designed to deliver better services to members.
Our 2017 result
Consolidated financial result

Total revenue

Expenses

$6.77m deficit

$130.42m

$137.19m

compared with $8.18m deficit in 2016

up $5.89m (4.7%) on 2016

up $4.48m (3.4%) on 2016

Consolidated financial result

Revenue

Last year we forecast another, smaller deficit in this year’s
consolidated result, reflecting our ongoing strategic
investments in technology and member programmes.

Our member subscriptions revenues continue to grow as our
membership numbers increase.

We have also made additional investments in our strategic
alliance with ACCA which had not been budgeted for –
laying the foundations that will extend our network reach
for members in Australia and New Zealand as they look
to the emerging Asian markets for business and career
opportunities.

8

Our education revenues are up reflecting a strong increase
in our CA Program module enrolments and our pipeline of
candidates is strong.
Further, as we continue to pivot our Lifelong Learning
capabilities onto digital platforms that provide members
with on-demand content we’re seeing an expected decline in
these revenues.

Member subscriptions and related revenue

Education and other services revenue

$70.18m up 7.0% on 2016

$57.71m up 2.9% on 2016
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Expenses
The increase in expenses is due to continued investment in
technology platforms, such as our new website, and increased
use of online training and webinar offerings.

We have also increased resources in our members team, through
higher-calibre relationship managers and continued focus on our
small to medium-sized practice members, with the CA Kairos platform.

Our 2017 expenditure
Here’s a summary of some of the key projects that we’ve invested in during the past financial year.
Members

Education

•

Launching our new Chartered
Accountants Australia and
New Zealand website

•

Increasing ‘on demand’
content through the CA
Education Store

•

Expanding overseas
member’s services

•

Continuing development of
the CA Program

•

Launch of CA Kairos

•

Reviewing pathways to
membership

•

Working to deliver the World
Congress of Accountants in
Sydney in 2018.

•

Developing Success Profiles
and a new Competency
Framework

•

•

Investing in additional
Professional Conduct
resources to maintain the
pre-eminence of the CA
designation
Assisting members through
changes to Australian
financial planning and
superannuation rules

•

Investing in third-party
partnerships

•

•

Providing 24/7 technical
support through Blackboard.

Promoting the value of
assurance

•

Advocating for fairer and
more efficient tax law

•

Continued thought
leadership through
future[inc].

Other projects

Marketing

Leadership & Advocacy
•

Art of Prosperity brand
campaign

•

Developing our strategic
alliance with ACCA

•

Launching the Campaign for
Learning

•

•

Consolidating our search,
social media and content
marketing programmes

Providing ongoing
investment in cloudbased systems technology
architecture

•

Launching our careers
marketing campaign
– Difference Makers
– highlighting how future
members can make a
difference as a Chartered
Accountant.

Providing further
commitment to the Māori
sector by hiring a Māori
Sector Manager to deepen
engagement with Ngā
Kaitatau Māori o Aotearoa
(NKMoA)

•

Working with Indigenous
Accountants Australia
to place Indigenous
undergraduates into
companies for work
expenience while
they study.

•
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Key events
2016
JULY
Two scholarships awarded to Tertiary Accounting Students of
Māori heritage.

AUGUST
Achiever programme expanded to NSW, Vic, Qld and WA,
joining ACT, SA, Tas. and NZ. This programme connects 152
employers with students.

SEPTEMBER
future[inc] What drives unethical behaviour? whitepaper
launched.
acuity wins Cover of the Year award and is runner up for
Business Magazine of the Year at the 2016 Publisher Awards.
CA Student Representatives recruited, bringing the total
number of our university and high school ambassadors to 185.
Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand sponsored diversity category in
the Women of Influence Awards in Australia
and New Zealand.

Art of Prosperity campaign launched.

More CA Student Representatives recruited
than ever before.

The Bridge Climb team with Community Investment Relationship
Manager, Pamela Lee.
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We sponsored the diversity category in the Australian Top 100
Women of Influence Awards and the New Zealand Women of
Influence Awards. The category winners: Kristy Masella, Chief
Executive of the Aboriginal Employment Strategy (AES) and
Sue Kedgley, NZ politician, author and food campaigner.

OCTOBER

CA Kairos launched.
We sponsored the New Zealand Innovation Awards and the
Education, Training and Development Category. The category
winner: The Manaiakalani Programme and Outreach, which
provides an innovative digital education approach for
learners in lower socio-economic areas.

NOVEMBER

Leadership in Government Awards with Kofi Annan, held
in Canberra.

DECEMBER
Launched new Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
consolidated website.

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand staff formed a
Bridge Climb team to fundraise over $12,000 for the National Breast
Cancer Foundation.
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2017
JANUARY
Young Enterprise Trust (YET) launched, inspiring 8,000+
secondary students throughout NZ to consider a career in
business and accounting.

Sponsored the 2017 CFO Summit & Awards in Auckland and
presented the Finance Team of the Year award to Summerset
Group Holdings.

FEBRUARY

MAY

Craig Norgate scholarships presented.

Responded to the Australian Federal and New Zealand
Budgets.

future[inc] The Future of Blockchain launched.
acuity website launched. www.acuitymag.com

MARCH
future[inc] The Future of Trade launched.
Partnered with Illuminate Australia’s illuminate:nextgen
Challenge, which helps inspire secondary students
throughout Australia to consider a career in business and
accounting.
Launched the CA Education Store and Campaign for
Learning – Stay Curious, Stay Ahead.
Women in Business conference, Auckland, Wellington.
Employment evening – brought together 2,800 students with
206 employers and exhibitors (Australia).
Sponsored the two-day AFR Business Summit in Sydney.
Among the speakers were Australian PM Malcolm Turnbull
and economist Jim O’Neill.

Young Enterprise Trust launched in NZ –
inspiring over 8,000 secondary students to
consider a career in business and accounting.

Meet the Business Leader connected 1,865 students from
120 high schools in Australia with inspiring business leaders.

JUNE
Business Forum 2017, Sydney and Auckland ‘Purpose
Beyond Profit’.
Term 2 CA Program enrolments campaign finished
at 110% to target.
future[inc] The Regulator of 2030: Regulating our digital
future launched.
One-year anniversary of our strategic alliance with ACCA .

Employment Evening - over 2,800 students
with 206 employers and exhibitors
in Australia.

Sponsored World Business Forum Sydney 2017. Speakers
included Wikipedia founder Jimmy Wales. We also hosted an
exclusive private event for members and business partners
that featured former Apple creative director Ken Segall.

Meet the Business Leader connected 1,865
students with business leaders.
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Educate
To support the development of our future members and equip them with skills that
will contribute to the success of business communities, and economies around the
world. We are also committed to providing lifelong learning opportunities for our
current members that keep pace with, and anticipate changes in, the accounting and
wider business environment.

In this section
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Gowthame Varathakeyan is a newly qualified
Chartered Accountant and co-creator of the Bond
Network – a networking group for young professionals.
“The CA qualification has given me the opportunity to
develop my own ideas.
There are so many opportunities. Take them and realise
your dreams.”

GOWTHAME VARATHAKEYAN CA
SENIOR ACCOUNTANT BDO

13
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The CA Program: going from strength to strength
Over the past three years,
we have been investing in
the CA Program, based on
a review that looked at the
needs of future students
and employers.

14

At the heart of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is the CA Program and the Graduate
Diploma of Chartered Accounting, which remains a rigorous and well-respected accounting qualification
in Australia and New Zealand. These are at the centre of our organisation, touching every member and
they will continue to have significant focus ensuring that the profession remains strong and relevant
for the future.
This year saw a notable increase in the number of module
enrolments by candidates in the CA Program, up by 4.5% on

the previous year and we hope to see continued growth for
future years.

23,056

4.5%

2.9%

CA Program module enrolments

CA Program module
enrolment growth

Increase in pipeline
(new candidates to the CA Program)

< <<

Strengthening the CA Program

Ongoing improvements to learning and delivery

Over the past three years we’ve been investing in the CA
Program based on a review that looked at the needs of
future students and employers. The review highlighted
opportunities to leverage new learning approaches and
technology to provide students with the skills they need in an
ever changing global business environment.

Our review of the CA Program has included delivering
learning opportunities that reflect the best education practice
and enable the best outcomes for CA Program candidates.

Reviewing the CA Program Content
We are also continuing to develop the CA Program content
to ensure it remains relevant. Recent changes have included
changes to the Audit and Assurance module to include
auditor reporting and the technological transformation
of the audit process. We have also updated the Financial
Accounting and Reporting module to include significant
changes to the Revenue, Leases and Financial Instruments
Accounting Standards.
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Our future candidates will demand increasing flexibility and
highly personalised content delivered at a competitive cost.
With this in mind we are currently exploring a range of future
developments including online assessments to provide an
anytime anywhere approach to learning.
We are also looking at how to use experiential learning
platforms to enhance the CA Program education experience.
This includes developing a virtual business process simulation,
where students can apply their learnings, demonstrate
non-technical skills, and gain real world feedback.

In 2018, we’ll be exploring options that will provide our
students with exposure to a range of contemporary
issues such as the impact of cloud computing in a
business environment.
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What does success
look like for you?
Everyone’s professional journey is
unique and there are many paths
you may wish to follow. To help
you succeed on your chosen path,
we’re developing a competency
framework tool that will allow you
to self-assess your competency
in key areas, and test your
knowledge and skills. This tool will
highlight areas where you may
benefit from further education
and professional development to
achieve your personal goals. You
can then link to the CA Education
Store and find relevant education
content suitable for your needs.
We are still in the development
and testing phase and look
forward to making this available to
our members in the coming year.
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Lifelong Learning: growing our future capability
Our profession is changing fast. So, more than ever, our members rely on quality professional development
opportunities to ensure their skills and qualifications remain current.
This year, we’ve seen changes in the way our members have
chosen to access their professional development through
our Lifelong Learning programmes. Increasingly they require
greater flexibility with the opportunity to access programmes

anytime, anywhere and on any device. As a result there
has been an increase in registrations via our online
platforms and a decrease in face-to-face conference
and workshop registrations.

Lifelong Learning
engagement hours

Continuing professional development
hours available across our portfolio

Courses made available through the
CA Education Store

156,271 hours

7,477 hours

90+%

35,286 total Lifelong Learning registrations

63.3%

12.7%

20.4%

3.6%

Online webinar
registrations
22,348

Conference
registrations
4,485

Face-to-face
workshop
registrations
7,203

Onsite education
registrations
1,250

< <<
Education for life

Public practice programme

We believe that education is about more than simply
meeting Continuing Professional Development requirements
and keeping up to date with technical skills. It’s about
strengthening the capability of the profession as a whole
– so our members can remain relevant in an ever-changing
business landscape, and make a greater contribution to the
prosperity of the communities they live and work in.

We also launched our new public practice programme –
refreshed and fit for the future.

As such, we’re continuing to review our education offerings,
using education practices, content, perspectives and learning
technologies that are at the forefront of where business is
going. Our learning content and experience is developed
with the understanding that our members are looking for
personalised, informal and collaborative learning that fits into
their world.
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The programme features a new, blended learning structure,
comprising technical eLearning modules and a collaborative
workshop, supported by best-practice learning methods.
The programme can be accessed as a whole or as standalone
modules.

Campaign for Learning
This year we launched our Campaign for Learning, encouraging
our members to invest in their professional development.
The campaign seeks to raise awareness of our new education
portfolio and, ultimately, to drive curiosity and the motivation
to learn.

CA Education Store
The biggest development in our ongoing education offering
this year is the launch of the CA Education Store.
The online CA Education Store provides members with a
single point of access to leading technical business education
content – anytime, anywhere.
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Isaac Hughes
GISBORNE, NEW ZEALAND

Despite an unconventional
start, provisional member and
recipient of the inaugural Craig
Norgate Memorial Scholarship,
Isaac Hughes, is a firm believer in
the power of education.

As a child of two teachers, it is unsurprising that Isaac Hughes
believes in the power of education. What is surprising is that
he only had the chance to attend formal schooling for two
years of his life.
“Then I started home schooling again for the rest of my life …
from nine through to 18.”
Isaac describes his parents as “quite fundamentalist
Christians” and says their decision to home school was based
on religious concerns.
“I think they were just a bit worried that we’d get led astray
at school.”
While studying for his high school qualification by
correspondence, Isaac began considering his future and
decided to become an accountant.
“I enjoy numbers and I enjoy the analysis side of it so I thought
that would be a good track to go down.”
Isaac’s parents were ‘actively against’ him attending
a tertiary campus, so at 18 he left home and moved in
with a family friend in Gisborne to start his Bachelor of
Business degree.
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In April this year, Isaac was awarded the inaugural Craig
Norgate Memorial Scholarship by Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand. The scholarship was created in
memory of a respected Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand leader and provides financial assistance to
talented aspiring Chartered Accountants.
Despite his unconventional schooling, Isaac says that
education is key to making the most of your life – and of giving
back to your community. “The biggest way to change your
life is through education, both in earning capacity and the
knowledge base that you gain,” he says.
“I feel like without knowledge, without money, I’m limited in my
ability to help other people. If I work at a minimum wage job
for the rest of my life, that’s all I can really give.” Isaac plans to
use his education – and altruistic attitude – to help stamp out
fraud in not-for-profit organisations.
“Going into not-for-profit organisations and finding fraud
and prosecuting fraud has tangible effects on people.
People’s money is going astray, money that’s meant to help
disadvantaged people. That’s something that really gets
me motivated.”

While he studied, he worked part time at Coates Associates
as an auditor, moving to full time upon graduation. He is set to
complete the CA Program by the end of 2018.
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Serve
To serve our members, the profession and our communities by upholding
professional standards, providing principled leadership and contributing to
a sustainable and prosperous future for all.

In this section
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Esther Wan is just 25 years old, but – as CFO of Australia’s
largest youth-run not-for-profit, she’s leading a movement
to end poverty. “Everyone has a responsibility to act for
social justice. Reflect on what you want to get out of life,
what you want your obituary to say … and work towards
that now.”

ESTHER WAN CA
CFO OAKTREE

21
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Upholding professional standards
“The changes to the Professional
Conduct programme at
Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand ensures that
it complies with international
requirements and is more
consistent with the New Zealand
process.”
“I’m pleased to report that the
new procedures are operating
extremely well, providing a fair,
effective and efficient process
– which has also resulted in
a substantial reduction in
the backlog of unresolved
complaints.”
Nancy Dolan (non-member)
Chair of the Professional
Conduct Oversight Committee

22

One of our most important duties to members is to preserve the reputation of their designations.
We do this by keeping our entry requirements rigorous and up to date – and by ensuring members
continue to comply with our high professional and ethical standards throughout their careers.
Professional conduct
Last year we changed the Professional Conduct Programme
in Australia, to introduce independent oversight, make

the process more robust and provide faster, more flexible
resolution of complaints

Complaints against members
Total number of complaints received

306

Total number of complaints resolved*

351
* Includes complaints received in 2015

< <<
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Resolutions

351 Total number of complaints resolved

23%

8%

54%

11%

4%

Resolved without
investigation
82

Withdrawn
28

Concluded by
Professional Conduct
investigation
189

Determined by
Disciplinary Tribunal
39

Determined on
appeal
13

Professional conduct investigation outcomes

189 Total professional conduct investigations
63.5%

30%

6.5%

Closed - no
further action
120

Caution
57

Consent Order/
Agreement
12
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Upholding professional standards
Breaches and sanctions

Sanctions ordered by Disciplinary and Appeals Tribunals

8

Criminal conviction

11

Termination/struck off

5

Professional misconduct

11

Cancellation/suspension

7

Conduct unbecoming

5

Cancellation/suspension of Certificate of Public
Practice (CPP)/ineligible to hold CPP

18

Failure to observe proper standard/negligence/
incompetence

3

Removal of Fellowship

10

Adverse finding

2

Fine

4

Entered into an undertaking

1

Condition or restriction on registration or licence

18
13
5
15
1
105

Breach of Charter, By-Laws, regulations, rules,
standards
Failure to comply with organisation’s direction/
correspondence
Insolvency/bankruptcy
Conduct bringing discredit/inconsistent with integrity
Providing false and misleading information to the
Professional Conduct Committee

26

Severe reprimand/reprimand/censure

3

Training and development/appointment of tutor/
required to obtain advice

4

Practice review ordered

0

No sanctions except publicity

47

Costs

1

Costs to Complainant

2

Member ordered to waive fees

1

PCC ordered to investigate member’s practice

1

Prohibition from undertaking specified assignments

117

* There can be more than one breach/charge laid in an individual case and more than one sanction applied.
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The Quality & Practice Review Programme

Improving compliance

The Quality & Practice Review Programme is an integral
part of our compliance framework, helping us maintain the
pre-eminence of the CA designation. Each year, we review
a selection of member Chartered Accountant practices to
determine whether they have the appropriate quality controls
in place to meet the relevant professional, technical and
legislative requirements.

Where a member Chartered Accountant practice falls
short of our requirements, we ask them to develop a plan
to address the issues raised.
We work with these member practices to help them
meet or exceed minimum requirements at the re-review,
providing mentors, tools and education, and monitoring the
improvement plan. We also use what we learn from this
process to promote continuous improvement among all
member practices.

The programme also helps us to:
•

engage with members and assist them in achieving
and maintaining quality

•

ensure our members act in the public interest

•

understand where members need additional guidance
in keeping up to date with changes in requirements

•

satisfy our regulatory and professional obligations.

81%

2017 quality reviews
A total of 417 reviews were conducted across Australia and
New Zealand in 2017.
These reviews revealed that most of the Chartered
Accountant, member practices we reviewed had adequate
quality controls in place. The majority of re-reviews were a
result of inadequate quality control, insufficient documentation
of audit evidence, or a combination of both.

82%
Satisfactory
Re-review required in 12 months

17%

Unsatisfactory

16%
2%

2016

2%
2017

Results of practice reviews
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Enhancing our service to our members

Help from a colleague – For many members, the main contact they have with Chartered Accountants Australia and
Chartered Accountants New Zealand is through our Customer Service Centre. This year, we restructured this important
area to create a more cohesive and coordinated experience for members.
Advisory Groups
Chartered Accountants Advisory
Groups are panels of senior members
that provide confidential counselling
and support to members. This year, we
added an Advisory Group to provide
support to members in New Zealand,
joining the six groups already operating
in Australia.
In the past year, the groups have
provided assistance to 121 members
facing challenging professional or
personal circumstances. These included
issues relating to partnerships,
public practice, working as a sole
practitioner, audits, clients, and other
matters, ranging from career changes,
suspected corruption and other
personal circumstances affecting
their work as Chartered Accountants.
If you have an issue you would like
confidential advice on, contact your
local Advisory Group through
our website.
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This year we have delivered strong levels of service, including
processing more than 28,000 applications and enrolments
and making changes to our annual subscriptions activity to

First call
resolution

94.7%

help streamline the process and make it easier for members
to interact with us.

Calls
answered

Average
wait

Answered
<30 seconds

Emails
<24 hours

99.2%

19 seconds

88.7%

98.9%

The Library

Member benefits

The Library is a resource available to all our members
- it provides access to a range of professional and business
resources and research assistance for members who may
need help in exploring a specific area of interest. As well as
providing hard-copy resources we also offer an e-book option
to improve accessibility. All members can access library
services and more information is available on the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand website.

The Affinity Member Benefits Programme provides you with
access to a range of exclusive offers from partners, including
American Express, Westpac, Aon and Thomson Reuters.
We look to continually improve these offers to ensure that our
members can access a range of products and services that are
relevant personally and professionally.

This year, 16,122 items were borrowed from the
member library.

To find out more about our Affinity programme see our website:
charteredaccountantsanz.com/member-services/memberbenefits/affinity-lifestyle

< <<
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Developing high performing teams
Our goal is to create an organisation that has the talent to deliver transformational services to our members.
To do this, we’re creating a dynamic and contemporary working environment where our people can
perform at their best.
Our future[inc] Future of Work research highlights that
tomorrow’s workplaces will be more flexible, mobile and
digital – with portfolio and non-linear careers replacing the
concept of a job for life.

We are creating a workplace that will attract and retain the
brightest talent for the future, so we can make your member
body more innovative and effective.

Where we’re located
21 office locations

1

UK

1

Hong Kong

1

Singapore

1

Malaysia

11

New Zealand

6

Australia
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54
employees moved into a
broader internal role

11

An entrepreneurial culture

Developing our own talent

We’re creating a culture that empowers our people to
innovate and experiment, to deliver great services to
members. This means enabling people to take informed risks,
collaborate, and communicate in new and flexible ways.

We are continuing to invest in our people, helping them to
develop the skills they need to best serve our members.

We measure progress with our culture through:

This programme helps prepare our people with the skills they
need to lead in a flexible work environment.

•

internal secondments

58%
of all roles filled internally

19%
turnover
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•

Our annual culture survey, the Leadership Culture
Circle Survey, which gives us a detailed year on year
comparison.
Regular interviews with people who have recently joined
or left our organisation.

This year we achieved 8% improvement. This is a significant
achievement, particularly when you consider that we are
less than three years on from the formation of our combined
organisation.

Our Step Up To Leadership programme, for new leaders and
potential future leaders, ran as a successful pilot this year.

Promoting diversity and inclusion
We have a diverse organisation, with people from all parts
of the community reflected in our workforce. We have no
gender pay gap across our workforce. Some still exist in senior
leadership roles. This year we were invited to take part in the
Employer of Choice for Pay Equity awards.
We are part of the Champions of Change diversity initiative
led by Global Women, which promotes diversity reporting in
the corporate sector. And for the first time, we are collecting
employee ethnicity data across the organisation so we can
better understand our people – and build a workforce that is
as diverse as our membership.

< <<
Gender diversity
Over the past year across our organisation
we have continued to seek an improvement
in gender diversity and have seen progress
in various senior management roles.
Female representation on our Board
has also improved, with both genders
now represented equally.

Age diversity
Our workforce spans four generations
Most employees are Millennials and
Gen Y (up to age 40) while Generation
X (now 40–49 years of age) is also
strongly represented.
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30 June 16

30 June 17

Organisation

70%

70%

Strategic Leadership Team (SLT)

25%

25%

Business Leadership Team (BLT)

36%

45%

Leadership level

34%

58%

Board

36%

50%

Proportion of female representation

3%
18%
22%

2%
22%

33%

20-29

50-59

30-39

60-69

40-49

70+

Mapping diversity
At the end of 2016, we asked our employees to take part in
a diversity and inclusion survey, to find out more about what
diversity and inclusion means to them – with more than one
third of our employees participating.

We also asked members to complete a similar survey, with
480 respondents to date. We’ll use the results of these
surveys to help shape our policies to create an inclusive
culture where everyone can freely contribute.
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Giving back
$20,991
Payroll giving

Our Everybody Counts programme continues to grow, supporting charities in Australia and New Zealand.
This year, we contributed a total of $202,732 to our nine charity partners.
Australia

$85,694
Charity Collection including fundraising
activities

$25,000
Organisational matching to a
pre-determined cap

New Zealand

$18,550
In kind meeting room usage

$19,608
Lifelong Learning Events

$21,291
Volunteering

$11,599
Donations
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Employee giving in action
Here are two Everybody Counts initiatives that generated great results for charities on each side of the Tasman.
Australia

New Zealand

In April, employees from the Sydney office took part in the
Bridge to 2030 fundraising event for the National Breast
Cancer Foundation. Eleven team members climbed the
Sydney Harbour Bridge, raising more than $12,000 for
the charity.

The Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Auckland team hosted and prepared a dinner for the Cancer
Society at the Domain Lodge, which was enjoyed by Cancer
Society staff, patients and their families.

< <<
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Barry Jameson FCA
LISMORE, AUSTRALIA

Barry Jameson has spent a lifetime giving back to his profession. This year, he
was awarded the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Meritorious
Service Award (MSA), acknowledging his contribution.
After a career spanning more than 30 years, including
25 as partner in Lismore’s Thomas Noble & Russell firm,
Barry Jameson retired in 2014. But when he received a call
requesting his help in the aftermath of a tragic accident
involving another Chartered Accountant in his region, he
immediately sprang back into action.
“It was a dreadful situation – the member had been in a
motor accident and was killed. I was asked if I could help
assist the executor in cleaning up the practice – and said,
sure, I’d help sort that out.”
It was a generous act, and one consistent with Barry’s
philosophy of service which has driven him throughout his
career. It is also this philosophy that has made him such a
valuable member of the Chartered Accountants community.
“My belief is that the member body is there to serve the
needs of the members – but there is an implied contract that
members are also here to help the professional body and
thereby each other,” says Barry. “For the organisation to be
strong and effective, I believe that we all have the obligation
to give back.”

Barry has a long history of contributing to the profession – in
the 1990s, he was instrumental in the development of the
Quality Review Programme, providing significant input to the
structure of the programme. He was an active member of
the NSW North Coast Region members’ committee, was
integral in assisting smaller regional practices on a variety of
technical and practice management issues, and mentoring
many members for the benefit of the profession. He was also
a member of the regional CPE panel, providing guidance on
regional training, and was involved in the development of the
NSW Country Congress.

Barry believes that by getting
involved and working together,
Chartered Accountants can
make the profession stronger.

Barry was also a member of the then ICAA Audit Advisory
Committee which reviewed current audit and reporting
issues and made recommendations for the consideration of
the governing Board.
“If one of us goes down because of a poor decision, it can
reflect badly on all of us. But if you share your expertise, you
can help others to do a better job,” says Barry. “If we can help
each other in this way, then the whole community benefits.
If one person is stronger than the others in a particular field,
they should use that expertise to help improve the
whole profession.”
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Home

Connect
To provide a forum for our global membership of 117,000 business professionals to
share ideas, technical knowledge and sharp thinking through a wide range of formal
and informal networks.

In this section
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Rebecca Glover has forged a career in the not-for-profit
(NFP) sector that is every bit as challenging and compelling
as the corporate world. “I spend my day job helping to try to
change the situation for others and overseeing and making
decisions that actually affect the lives of others,” she says.

REBECCA GLOVER CA
CFO WORLD VISION AUSTRALIA
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ACCA and Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand: celebrating the first year of our strategic alliance
Strategic alliance objectives
Increase the profile of both
brands worldwide

The strategic alliance remains one of our most important initiatives allowing us to collaborate to provide more resources and
opportunities to our members and enhance the reach and value of our brand.

Enhance support to members
and other stakeholders

The alliance in action

Contribute to the development
of the profession and
business world

In the first year of the alliance, both organisations have
worked together to deliver:

Make a change within the
professional body landscape
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In June, we celebrated one year of our strategic alliance with the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA), and in our first year, we have welcomed over 400 ACCA members as new
members of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand.

What we’ve done so far

•

access for Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand members to ACCA resources and facilities
in Asia and the UK

Lumpur and Hong Kong and ACCA staff in Sydney – saving
on costs and creating additional opportunities to connect
•

joint engagement on a report into ethics and trust in a
digital age (published August 2017).

Looking ahead
Over the next year, alliance initiatives will include:
•

conducting joint research on the digital world and its
impact on the profession

•

successful research and global launch events with IFAC
on a report about the tax systems in G20 nations

•

•

support for members with focussed continuous professional
development opportunities

co-authoring a paper on financial reporting for nonexecutive directors on boards around the world

•

•

co-sponsored research with ASEAN Federation of
Accountants (AFA) on small and medium sized
businesses (SMEs)

developing a coordinated approach for joint academic
roundtables, to promote and support the reach of
professional insight initiatives

•

providing joint responses to international exposure drafts

•

a jointly branded magazine – Reach

•

•

co-location of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand employees in London, Singapore, Kuala

exploring innovative joint solutions with our education
specialists to provide new CPD opportunities

•

relaunching the Accounting Futures magazine as the
alliance’s external thought leadership publication.
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Growing our membership
Our large and diverse membership is the source of our strength – so we are working to ensure our
organisation can attract and retain the best business minds, now and in the future.

Events/activities
Employment Evenings:

2,800
students attended

Our membership

117,112

3.3%

members (includes full and provisional members)

net membership growth (full members only)

Meet the Business Leader:

1,865
students attended
High school engagements:

Exploring new designations

Reaching out to future members

We are exploring pathways to membership for accounting
technicians and business professionals. By providing new
designations, we can grow our membership with targeted
qualifications – building a stronger core of accounting
professionals while maintaining the integrity and
pre-eminence of the CA designation.

We actively connect with potential future members in high
schools and universities, and through contact with careers
advisers, teachers and academics.

We’re reviewing the AT designation which is currently only
available in New Zealand, and its potential to expand into the
Australian market – and beyond – over the longer term. We
are also looking at options relating to a Chartered Business
Professional (CBP) designation, however this will require a
member vote and will involve extensive communication and
engagement with our members and other stakeholders.

This year we reached more than 2,800 university students
through our Employment Evenings, and 1,865 high school
students through our Meet the Business Leader events.
We continued to grow our presence in universities through
our Student Brand Representatives programme, adding 185
representatives across more than 40 tertiary institutions.

421
Universities and other
institutions engagements:

1,384
Student societies engaged:

23
CA speakers:

287
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The Difference Makers
“The placement I received
through the Achiever Programme
really changed my perspective and
gave me a great insight into the work
that accountants actually do on a
day-to-day basis. The experience
of this, both the practical skills
and simply being in a professional
environment, has been
hugely helpful.”

– Gabriela Diver, Auckland.

In March, we launched a new advertising campaign aimed at
potential future members. The Difference Makers campaign
seeks to show tomorrow’s business leaders that the CA
qualification is for the type of person who wants to help
change lives for the better.
Campaign videos were shown at Employment Evening
events for university students, featured on our website,
Facebook and LinkedIn pages, and distributed through other
social media and digital channels.
The response to the campaign has been positive across the
youth audience – and we anticipate a lift in brand awareness
for this demographic in our next Brand Health Index.

The Difference Makers campaign

9.6 million

13,000

impressions to the campaign through
digital channels

clicks through to
youunlimitedanz.com

550,000
completed video views

Achiever Programme – connecting students with
Chartered Accountants employers
Our Achiever Programme provides first year university
students with real-world experience of a career as a
Chartered Accountant. It connects students with a member
organisation through a 3–12 week internship. This year, 174
students took part in the programme, up from 40 the
year before.
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Around 70 employers elected to be involved, extending the
reach of the programme to new locations.
We’ll seek to grow the programme in the coming years, to
offer more students the ability to access this valuable learning
experience.

< <<
Promoting diversity within the profession
Chartered Accountants can play a valuable role in growing
prosperity in the communities they live and work in. That’s why
we believe it’s important to encourage people from all our
communities to consider a career as a Chartered Accountant.
Over the next year, we will introduce our Inclusion framework,
to promote greater diversity across the profession,
supporting the work we already do with key partners,
including Indigenous Accountants Australia (IAA) and Ngā
Kaitatau Māori o Aotearoa – National Māori Accountants
Network (NKMoA).

Indigenous Accountants Australia (IAA)
In Australia, we work with IAA to help raise awareness of the
benefits of accounting within indigenous communities and to
connect indigenous students to careers in the business world.
As part of NAIDOC week, IAA hosted events in Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand offices around
the country, helping create greater understanding of and a
connection with indigenous culture within our organisation.

Throughout this year, IAA held networking events in Sydney,
Brisbane, Melbourne and Darwin, connecting students with
employers and providing them with the opportunity to gain
valuable work experience. IAA also worked closely with South
Australia’s Aboriginal Accounting and Finance Employment
Cluster programme, that places indigenous undergraduates
in companies for work experience while they study.
IAA seeks to engage with State and Federal Governments
to help shape future policy. This year, IAA made a submission
to the Prime Minister and Cabinet’s Consultation Paper
on Indigenous Business Sector Strategy – Supercharging
Indigenous Business Start-Up and Growth. IAA
representatives also attended a PM&C Roundtable
discussion in Sydney in June 2017.
This year saw the number of qualified indigenous
accountants rise from 28 to 36.
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Dreamtime at the G
As part of National Reconciliation
Week, IAA invited indigenous business
students and guests to join them
on ‘The Long Walk’ ahead of the
‘Dreamtime at the G’ football match
between Richmond and Essendon.
Dreamtime at the G is the flagship
event of the Australian Football
League’s (AFL) Sir Doug Nicholls
indigenous round, which aims to foster
positive and respectful relationships
between Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people and other Australians.
Starting with entertainment and
speeches at Federation Square, the
IAA group joined Michael Long and
other indigenous leaders, the Prime
Minister of Australia, the Hon Malcolm
Turnbull MP, the Minister for Indigenous
Affairs, the Hon Nigel Scullion,
Opposition leader, Hon Bill Shorten
MP, Victorian Premier Daniel Andrews
MP and thousands of footy fans on a
symbolic ‘long walk’ to the MCG.
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Ngā Kaitatau Māori o Aotearoa – National Māori
Accountants Network (NKMoA)
Each year, Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand works alongside strategic partner, Ngā Kaitatau
Māori o Aotearoa – National Māori Accountants Network
(NKMoA), to find ways to encourage more Māori into the
accounting profession.
This year, we appointed a Māori Sector Manager to work with
NKMoA, to support and promote this commitment.
We also sponsored this year’s Hui-a-Tau, Māori Accountants
Conference, hosted by NKMoA in Rotorua in July. The theme
of the Hui-a-Tau this year was ‘Disruption and Innovation’
and brought together a great line up of speakers.
Māori accountants from all over New Zealand travelled
to the Hui-a-Tau in Rotorua to celebrate Māori within the
accounting space.
Earlier this year, we also collaborated with NKMoA to offer
scholarships to Māori accounting students who demonstrate
a focus on contributing toward their community and
leadership.

38

This year, the Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Ngā Raumanako Māori Scholarship and the
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand NKMoA
Suzanne Spencer Memorial Māori Scholarship were awarded
to four aspiring Māori Chartered Accountants at the Hui-aTau dinner on 15 July.

Engaging with employers
Our CA Communities programme is changing the way we
interact with large employers, and engage with the members
who work for them.
CA Communities takes our thought leadership and events into
the workplace, making them more accessible and convenient
for members to attend. This year, we’ve partnered with
organisations including NAB, ANZ, Flight Centre, SunCorp
and Australia Post, to co-host future[inc] thought leadership
events and panel discussions – tailoring the content to make
it relevant to their needs.
By taking a flexible approach to how we deliver content, we’re
making it easier for members to meet their CPD requirements
and build on their expertise, while strengthening member
networks within the workplace.

< <<
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Building a better connection with our members
Now in its second year, our Member Experience (MX) project is helping ensure that member needs are
at the core of what we do.
Last year the project mapped the stages of the member
experience to determine what members are looking for from
their membership. This year, we’ve challenged every part of
the organisation to apply these principles when we approve,
prioritise and implement projects.

This resulted in members being actively involved in the testing
and feedback of our new member website, to maximise its
usability and relevance. We also explored the types and
volume of emails you receive from us. Based on this feedback,
we’re reviewing our communications to send fewer but more
targeted and relevant emails to you.

Other examples of changes we’re making to improve the member experience include:

Joining

Renewing

Leaving

Our research highlighted the
opportunity to do more to acknowledge
members when they move from
provisional to full membership.

This year we streamlined the annual
subscription process, by making it
easier for members to update their own
details and create a new invoice when
required. We’ll continue to look for ways
to improve this process.

We’re learning from former members,
seeking to understand the reasons a
member might leave the organisation,
and provide a more personal approach
in helping them access the options
available to them.

So, we’ll be looking at new ways to
celebrate this important milestone of
qualifying as a Chartered Accountant.
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Connecting members: Mentor Exchange
Mentor exchange
programme
Number of participants

574
Increase on 2016

40%

Following its successful launch in 2015, we’ve updated the Mentor Exchange programme to enable
greater access and participation – this year we have created 287 mentoring internships.
By automating the application and matching service, we have
streamlined the administration involved with the programme,
making it easier to create more mentor opportunities.
In the coming year, we will increase the number of locations
where the programme is available from 11 to 16 worldwide.
We’ll also explore extending the programme to provide
specific mentoring support for mid-career members who
are transitioning to an executive role, or returning from a
career break.

We will also seek to develop virtual mentoring, to remove the
limitations of the face-to-face programme. By using digital
communication to replace in-person meetings and webinars
for the programme’s workshops and events, we can enable
more members to participate in the programme regardless
of their location.

CPD credit

6 hours
To be part of the Mentor Exchange
programme, go to our website.

Building brand engagement
We’re continuing to build our brand, to reach out to our members and the broader community.
From a new digital presence and ongoing Art of Prosperity campaign, to our global brand building relationship with
Chartered Accountants Worldwide (CAW), we are continuing to drive recognition of the Chartered Accountant brand.
This helps ensure that the CA designation will continue to be recognised and respected among employers, business
leaders, government, clients and the general public.

New website
This year we transformed our online presence with the
launch of the new Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand website. The new website was designed with
significant member input, to provide a more dynamic and
user friendly web experience, that can be accessed from a
range of devices.
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Our new site has a more unified and contemporary feel to
make it easier for members to find important information,
get easy access to digital resources and manage their
membership easily. The CA Education Store also gives
members the ability to browse and register for their
professional development needs.
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Measuring our impact on members, future members and business
We are committed to continuous improvement, so each year
we measure how our brand is received by our members,
future members, influencers, and business, through an
independently run Brand Health Index (BHI).
Over the past few years many of our members have taken
part in our survey.

This helps to keep us focused on the things that matter, what
can be improved, and any issues we need to be aware of.
The results form part of our business planning process and
we are grateful to all those who take the time to give us their
valuable insights.

Brand campaign: The Art of Prosperity
We’ve continued to promote the contribution that Chartered
Accountants make to the businesses and communities they
serve, through our Art of Prosperity campaign.
This year we were delighted that the campaign was
nominated in the Pacific Area Newspaper Publishers’
Association (Panpa) Awards. We measure the performance
of the campaign by its impact on unprompted awareness
among our business audiences. The awareness has
continued to build from the pre-advertising level of 7% to
a high in November 2016 of 17%, remaining steady in
May 2017 at 15%.
We have also continued to profile the CA designation at
key business events where we are aligning with business
leaders and innovative business thinking: including the World
Business Forum, New Zealand Innovation Awards, Women of
Influence Awards and the CFO Forum.

We will continue to build on and refresh our brand approach
in the coming year with a focus on members serving small
to medium businesses. The brand campaign will continue
to raise awareness of the pre-eminence of Chartered
Accountants and the value they contribute as leaders in
business and finance.

Preparing for
World Congress
In 2018, Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand will
co-host the World Congress of
Accountants (WCOA) with CPA
Australia.
Held on behalf of the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC),
the two member bodies won the
bid to bring the event to Sydney as
part of a competitive tender.
WCOA is the pinnacle global event
for our profession – a world-class
business and finance event that
will provide unparalleled delegate
experiences, connections,
speakers and thought leaders.
From Artificial Intelligence to
ethics, sustainability to strategy,
WCOA 2018 will bring together
the best and brightest in our field.
Attracting more than 4,000
accounting and business
professionals this event poses a
fantastic opportunity for Australia
to showcase itself as a leader of
professional services and highlight
the value that our accounting
profession delivers to both local
and global prosperity.
To find out more, go to
wcoa2018.com

41

< <<

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

Celebrating our members
Member events
One of our most important activities are our member events, that connect individual members to other Chartered Accountants
in their communities. This year we held 1,523 member events in metropolitan, regional and rural locations in Australia,
New Zealand and around the world.

985

538

1,523

in Australia and overseas

in New Zealand

total member events

Fellowship
Each year, we honour members who have made an outstanding contribution to the profession by granting a Fellowship of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (FCA). This year, we welcomed 145 new fellows.
To see who received those honors visit our website.

60

61

11

5

4

3

1

in Australia

in New Zealand

in the United
Kingdom

in Singapore

in Malaysia

in Hong Kong

in the UAE

Member milestones
We also recognise members for key membership milestones, acknowledging their participation and contribution to the
Chartered Accountant member body at regional events around the globe.

Years of membership
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2,836

1,072

744

169

102

21

4

Achieved
20 years

Achieved
30 years

Achieved
40 years

Achieved
50 years

Achieved
60 years

Achieved
70 years

Achieved
75 years
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Leadership in Government Awards

Members recognised in national honours

The Leadership in Government Awards celebrate members
working in the government sector.

Chartered Accountants make a real and acknowledged
contribution to the communities they serve. So, it isn’t
surprising that our members frequently appear in national
honours lists.

This year former UN Secretary General Kofi Annan
delivered the keynote address from Geneva on Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).
The event concluded with a Q&A panel on the UN SDGs with
journalist Emma Alberici and guests including the former
President of East Timor Dr José Ramos-Horta, musician
and sustainable development ambassador Kirk Pengilly, and
University of Canberra’s Professor Barbara Norman.
The Outstanding Contribution to Public Administration Award
includes $20,000 for leadership development and growth.
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In January, 11 Chartered Accountants were awarded
Australia Day honours, while five New Zealand Chartered
Accountants were appointed to the New Zealand Order of
Merit in the New Year’s Honours List.
In the Queen’s Birthday Honours List, seven Australian
and five New Zealand Chartered Accountants received
recognition for their service.

2016 Outstanding Contribution to Public
Administration Award:
Susan Pascoe AM, Commissioner of the Australian Charities
and Not-for-Profits Commission.
2016 Graduates of the year:
Charlie Shandil from the Department of Immigration and
Border Protection and Kristine Toy from the Department of
Foreign Affairs and Trade.
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Michael
Bradburn
CA, ACCA
SYDNEY, AUSTRALIA

Michael Bradburn is CFO of
Australia’s largest electricity
distributor, Ausgrid – and our
first Chartered Accountant to
take advantage of the strategic
alliance with Association
of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) by
becoming an ACCA member.

When Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
announced its strategic alliance with ACCA in June 2016,
Michael Bradburn CA didn’t waste any time becoming the first
member recognised by both organisations under the alliance.
He was motivated by his high regard for the ACCA designation,
having worked with a number of ACCA members throughout
his career, including in a professional group aimed at
developing and mentoring tomorrow’s CFOs.
“I came across ACCA through a CFO Round Table series on
the CFO of the Future being hosted by Brendan Sheehan, one
of ACCA’s global council members,” says Michael. “Through
this group I have been able to connect with a wider network of
global professionals, who are as passionate about supporting
future CFOs as I am.”
Michael believes the global nature of the alliance, which
represents 308,000 members and 480,000 students in
181 countries, will yield long term new opportunities for
members of both organisations.
“If you’re a Chartered Accountant, your designation carries
some reassurance that you are of a certain professional and
educational standing. You start off conversations from a
strong standpoint,” he says. “But as finance becomes a more
global profession, there’s an opportunity for young Chartered
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Accountants to benefit from the ACCA brand, as it has
good recognition and value in corporations and in some
overseas markets.”
For Michael, the benefits of taking up ACCA membership
include wider recognition of his skills outside the Asia-Pacific
region, access to exceptional thought leadership from ACCA’s
global Research and Insights team, and being part of a global
movement in the profession to represent the public interest.
But he says it’s the ability to connect with a broader network of
like-minded CFOs who want to give back to the profession that
yields the greatest personal reward.
“As a CFO, there is plenty of opportunity to help a business
make more money. But on your death bed you’re not going to
be thinking about how you increase the return on capital from
X to Y. You’re going to be looking at the impact you have on
people and how you develop people over the years and see
them become exemplary CFOs,” says Michael.
“Through my joint membership of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand and ACCA, I have greater reach
and ability to make a contribution, and to make a real difference
in people’s professional lives.”
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Innovate
To help shape the prosperity of our nations by stimulating debate, sharing fresh ideas and
facilitating discussions that lead to new approaches and tangible results for our members,
business and the wider community.

In this section
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“The CA qualification has given me the
opportunity to develop my own ideas, both
inside and outside of the work environment.
Whatever ideas you have … get involved. Look
for opportunities to serve the community, to
organise, or be a keynote speaker at events.
There are so many opportunities.
Take them and realise your dreams.”

PAUL ANDERSON CA, CEO NZSki
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Inspiring fresh thinking
future[inc] events
future[inc] is more than research
and publications – it’s a programme
of events and discussions, both live
and online, designed to bring experts
together with Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand and the
business community to examine the key
issues shaping our future.

Our future[inc] programme continues to serve the profession by positioning Chartered Accountants as leaders,
innovators and trusted advisers in business and finance. It seeks to advance the public interest and contribute to
the discussion on perspectives that matter to our future prosperity.
future[inc] 2017
We published these future[inc] papers during the past financial year:
A QUESTION OF ETHICS

NAVIGATING ETHICAL FAILURE IN THE
BANKING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY

PERSPECTIVES ON PROSPERITY

57

Public Debt
and Deficits:
DESIGNING A FRAMEWORK
FOR AUSTRALIA’S FUTURE

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

future[inc] events and
engagements

4,304

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

A Question of Ethics: Navigating Ethical Failure in
the Banking and Financial Services Industry

The Future of Financial Reporting: A
Question of Influence

Public Debt and Deficits: Designing a
framework for Australia’s future.

20 September 2016

30 October 2016

5 December 2016

TM
TM

TM

PERSPECTIVES ON PROSPERITY

PERSPECTIVES ON PROSPERITY

PERSPECTIVES ON PROSPERITY

registrations for future[inc]
events and webinars

10,156
videos played

The Future
of Blockchain:

ARE WE READY TO EMBRACE
THE OPPORTUNITIES?

The Regulator of 2030:
REGULATING OUR DIGITAL FUTURE

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc
charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

The Future of Blockchain
1 February 2017
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The Future of Trade

APPLICATIONS AND IMPLICATIONS OF
DISTRIBUTED LEDGER TECHNOLOGY

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

The Future of Trade: Are we ready to
embrace the opportunities?

The Regulator of 2030: Regulating our
digital future

30 March 2017

6 June 2017
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Advocating for better policy
We believe we have a responsibility to our members to advocate for good public policy that
advances the prosperity of our nations. The wealth of knowledge of our membership helps inform
our policy positions.
We advocate in the public interest on policy matters that impact the accounting profession and the businesses and communities
in which our members operate. This involves working closely with government departments and agencies, regulators and
standard setters.
As part of our advocacy work, we also provide formal written feedback in response to policy consultations and other inquiries.
During the year, we completed almost 200 submissions.
We measure our success in this area through the advancement of our policy positions and through the results of our Brand Health
Index, which measures perceptions of our leadership and representation of our members’ interests to media and government.

Our advocacy snapshot
Here’s a summary of our key advocacy activities during the past financial year. For more detail on our policy positions,
go to our website.
Topic

Description

Number of
submissions

Audit

We’ve been helping members understand the recent changes to audit
reporting requirements which became mandatory on 15 December 2016 and
provide increased transparency to support effective markets. We are also
helping to support a better understanding of the value of audit.

14

Australian Tax

We have continued to advocate for tax reform and have been actively working
with Government on their Black Economy deliberations.
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Business Issues

We’ve championed key regulatory matters impacting business, including
anti-money laundering and counter–terrorism financing, crowd-sourced equity
funding, ASIC supervisory cost recovery proposals, and climate risk disclosure.

14

We also supported members with tools and information on the Budgets in
Australia and New Zealand.
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Topic

Description

Number of
submissions

Financial
Advisory
Services

We’ve advocated for an industry framework that delivers more professional
and ethical financial advice to the public, reducing complexity and regulatory burden
– particularly for small businesses and those in regional and rural areas – and providing
clearer regulatory guidance and certainty regarding Australian Financial Services
licensing obligations.

Government
Affairs

We lodged our 2017–18 pre-Budget submission, which outlined our policy
recommendations for the Australian Federal Government, and released our
policy analysis and commentary on the Federal Budget 2017–18 and
New Zealand Budget 2017. In Australia, we also led a discussion panel on
Federation Reform at Parliament House with the State Treasurers from Victoria,
South Australia and New South Wales.

Insolvency

We advanced the case for insolvency law reform in both Australia and
New Zealand, encouraging an appropriate balance between protection and
ease of recovery, to enable prosperous and innovative business environments.

7

New Zealand Tax

We’ve been active in advocating for sustainable and fair tax policy settings
and efficient taxation administration.

76

Professional
and Ethical
Standards

The Code of Ethics is undergoing significant change to its content, style and
structure. We have responded to international and local proposals.

5

Reporting

In New Zealand, we have been involved in helping members implement the
financial reporting framework, particularly in relation to small businesses and
registered charities.

10

9

We have also worked on shaping new reporting standards covering revenues
and financial instruments, due to come into effect in 2018 and 2019
respectively.
Superannuation

50

We’ve been actively engaged in working with legislators and regulators to advocate
for flexible systems, and to provide feedback on the numerous proposals for change
which have been advanced.

11
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Consulting with members
Direct member input into policy and activities is important.
We promote this input and encourage two-way
conversations on policy matters in a number of ways,
including through specifically established committees.
We believe members should have a voice in our policy
positions and frameworks. Consultation enables us to present
a view that is truly representative of our profession and the
public interest.

Specific advisory committees on policy matters

We also consult with members on policy issues through our
Public Practice, Corporate Sector, Charities and Not-forProfit, and Regional and Rural Advisory Committees.
In addition, we undertake member activities that enable full
and frank sharing of knowledge and experience. Through
these activities we ensure issues are fully understood,
different points of view are balanced, and the public interest
is maintained.

Member attendance

Number of meetings

Trans-Tasman Audit Advisory Committee

12

3

Indirect Tax (AU)

10

4

Tax Technical (AU)

14

3

Large Super Fund Committee (AU)

10

2

SMSF Committee (AU)

10

2

Tax Advisory Group (NZ)

18

3

National Tax Liaison Group (NZ)

5

4

Insolvency Management Committee (AU)

8

3
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Professional Standards (Limitation of
Liability) Schemes extended to Tasmanian
public practitioners

Influencing tax policy
In New Zealand, the Tax Advisory
Group, made up of leading tax experts,
has been working tirelessly to influence
and shape tax reform in that country.
Members make a substantial voluntary
contribution of their time and expertise
to make submissions on new policy
or interpretations – or proactively
bring issues to the attention of the
government.
One example is challenging the
current taxation treatment of shares
received by New Zealand investors on
the demerger of an Australian listed
company. Where NZ shareholders
receive shares in these circumstances,
they end up with a taxable dividend in
New Zealand. At the time of writing, a
legislative amendment to address this
issue was before the NZ Parliament.
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This year our Professional Standards team celebrated a
significant achievement with the extension of our Professional
Standards Schemes to public practice members in Tasmania.
The Scheme sets a limit on the maximum amount that can be
awarded for a legal claim against your practice, based on the
size and nature of your business. Designed to work together
with your Professional Indemnity insurance, it covers most
Australian members in public practice who hold a Certificate
of Public Practice (CPP).
Due to constraints in the legislation, no scheme had existed
for Tasmanian practitioners. With a change to the legislation
in late 2016, and a successful application to extend our
Victorian Scheme from 31 July 2017, a scheme is now in place
for our Tasmanian members. This is the tangible result of 11
years of advocacy.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is the first
professional accounting organisation to have a scheme in
place in Tasmania.
During the coming year, we’ll continue to advocate for
changes to make it possible to extend similar protection to
audit practitioners in New Zealand. To learn more about the
Professional Standards (Limitation of Liability) Scheme, see
our website.

Leading and influencing the policy debate
Our expertise as a Trans-Tasman member body strengthens
our ability to lead and influence the debate on key business,
economic and policy matters. By engaging in the public
conversation and providing our professional insights, we
believe we can help drive the future prosperity of our nations.
For the July 2016 Australian Federal Election, we continued
our advocacy on the election year policy recommendations in
our Call To Action for the Federal Government.
We lodged our 2017–18 Pre-Budget submission in January
2017, which outlined our policy recommendations for the
Federal Government, focusing on tax reform, sustainable
retirement incomes, and improving budgetary analysis and
decision making.
In May 2017, we also released our commentary, policy
analysis and thought leadership on the Australian Federal
Budget 2017-18 and the New Zealand Budget 2017, including
downloadable resources for members, and the results of our
pre-Budget Ipsos polls of 1,000 Australians and 750 people
from New Zealand on their budget priorities.
This generated significant media coverage in both Australia
and New Zealand – strengthening our relevance and reach,
and increasing the recognition of our members as trusted
leaders and innovators in business and finance.
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Telling our stories – acuity
Our publication, acuity, provides a forum for sharing thought-provoking content and business
perspectives with our members and the broader business community.
This year we’ve continued to advance the reach and
accessibility of acuity, bringing more content online and giving
members more options to access and enjoy it.
As part of our digital transformation, we have reduced the
number of print versions of acuity, and introduced digital
subscriptions via the acuitymag.com website, providing a

dedicated site to find all things acuity. We also launched a
line of acuity podcasts, updated fortnightly.
In this way, we are building a broad and growing online
audience, and giving members more ways to access stories
on the latest trends, people and thinking in economics,
business and finance.
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acuity circulation
(as at March 2017)

25,411
New Zealand

65,744
Australia

8,981
International
TOTAL

100,136
8,822
Podcast subscribers

800
Downloads per episode
(average)

4,440
Fortnightly digital newsletter subscribers
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e-newsletter
subscriptions
We create regular e-newsletters on
specific policy and technical areas to
help keep members up to date with the
latest changes. To subscribe,
go to our website.
Reporting & Assurance News

19,725
Taxation News (AU)

Helping members stay ahead of change
Staying up to date with policy and technical issues is an important obligation of membership.
We help our members to meet this obligation through informative newsletters and direct
support on technical issues.
Type and number of enquiries

410

284

612

90

Financial reporting
policy or technical
matters

Audit policy or
technical matters

Superannuation and
financial advisory
policy or technical
matters

Australian tax
policy matters

25,869
Superannuation News (AU)

15,576
Financial Services News
(paid subscription)

869
Business Valuation Newsletter

4,300
Forensic Accounting Newsletter

3,200
IT Newsletter

3,300
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4,371

70

Professional Standards
New Zealand
(ethics, practice, certificate
tax policy
of public practice, liability and technical
capping and continuing
matters
professional development)

Member events
This year, our policy teams helped almost 6,000 members understand key changes to policy through a series of member
events. These were in addition to the Business Forum, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand conferences (Audit,
Accounting, Tax and SMSF Conferences) and other events.
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Policy and technical updates to members		
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Number of
events

Attendance

New Zealand Anti-Money Laundering legislation awareness-raising seminars

3

385

New Zealand charities new reporting requirements seminars/webinars

8

590

Reporting and assurance knowledge sharing events		

12

500

Other audit-related member events		

5

90

Australian Tax team roadshows, seminars and events		

39

2,400

New Zealand Tax team roadshows, seminars and events		

34

1,700

Superannuation knowledge sharing events		

25

750

SMSF events

6

400

Financial Advisory Services knowledge sharing events and webinars		

6

200

Financial Planning Specialist events		

5

70

SMSF Specialist events		

5

90

Business Valuation Specialist events		

5

75
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Karen Loon FCA
SINGAPORE

Harnessing the power of diversity is more a journey
than a destination, according to PwC Singapore
Diversity Leader, Karen Loon FCA.
As a third generation Chinese Australian, now living in
Singapore, Karen Loon FCA says that diversity is an issue
close to her heart.
“Being Australian Chinese, I’m very passionate about
supporting the next generation of people with different
backgrounds. I want to be a role model to help and support
the younger people coming through.”
Karen has worked for PwC for almost 30 years, transferring
from Australia to Singapore in 1994. She now leads the
provision of assurance services to local and multi-national
banks in Singapore for the firm.
Karen also spends around 20 per cent of her time working as
PwC Singapore’s Territory Diversity Leader – developing and
implementing strategies to raise awareness of diversity and
inclusion in the organisation.
“Until recently, the diversity conversation was only about
gender, but there’s been a broadening and change in the
level of the discussion,” says Karen.
“Now we’re not just talking about having diversity of skills,
ability, gender and ethnicity – but about how you get people
to work better together.”
“In Singapore, we have a lot of natural diversity with a large
mix of people with ethnic backgrounds, as well as a large
international population – all with a broad range of skillsets,”
says Karen.
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“This means that there is a high natural awareness and
appreciation of difference. So a key focus is continuing to
educate people about stereotypes, and breaking down these
barriers in a friendly way. This can simply be getting people
who wouldn’t normally spend time together to meet over
lunch – which is a very important meal in Singapore!”
Karen believes passionately that embracing difference and
diversity is critical to the success of a business.
“It’s important to our clients – they expect us to brief the best
ideas to them, and that requires us to leverage all our people
and what everyone brings to work. It’s also important from a
talent perspective – 85 per cent of millennials want to work
somewhere that promotes diversity – and that allows them to
be themselves.”
She says that the work isn’t always easy – but has its own
rewards.
“You’re not going to change things overnight. But when people
start to comment back to you about having an environment
where they can be themselves, and can contribute in a way
that leverages what they bring to the table, it’s very powerful
and very fulfilling.”
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Our Board
LEFT TO RIGHT
Back: John Palermo FCA, Murray Jack FCA (Chair), Jane Stanton FCA (Vice President), Neil Paviour-Smith FCA, Ming Long FCA, Michael Forde FCA, Dianne McAteer
Front: Cassandra Crowley FCA (President), Penny Stragalinos FCA, Stephen Walker FCA (Vice President), Louise McCann, Mike Blake FCA
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Our Board
Board Directors and Office Bearers
PRESIDENT

CHAIR

Murray Jack

BCA, FCA

Term of office:

Cassandra Crowley

LLB, BCA, GradDipProfAccy, FCA

Term of office:

Director and Chair* since December 2014

President since 1 January 2017

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Date of next scheduled re-election:

N/A – term ends 31 December 2019

N/A – term ends 31 December 2017

Skills, experience and expertise:

Skills, experience and expertise:

Murray has over 30 years’ experience in management consultancy, working in the United
Kingdom, New Zealand, Australia and throughout Asia.

Cassandra has over 20 years’ experience working in leadership positions across a
variety of sectors in the New Zealand economy.

Murray has been an adviser to ministers and chief executives around the world. His
strengths include helping organisations to establish good corporate governance and
advising on business transformation.

Within the profession, prior to being elected President, she served as a Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand Councillor, New Zealand Regional Councillor,
and Councillor representing Wellington and Wairarapa for NZICA – as well as a member
of the Local Leadership Team for that region. She was also named NZICA Outstanding
New Member of the year.

Murray is also Chair of the board of the Financial Markets Authority, Chair of
Education Payroll Limited, a director of The New Zealand Initiative and an independent
member of the NZ Defence Force Advisory Board.

Board Committee memberships:
Executive Remuneration Committee since 2014
Nominations and Governance Committee since 2014
*As Chair, Murray attends all Audit and Risk Committee and Council meetings as an observer.

Cassandra is CEO for an iwi organisation and holds a number of directorships, including
of Oriens Capital, Skills Organisation, Student Job Search and the Western Institute of
Technology.

Board Committee memberships:
Council member since January 2015 and President since January 2017
Nominations and Governance Committee since January 2017
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VICE PRESIDENTS

DIRECTORS

Jane Stanton

Michael Blake

MAICD, BEc (Acct), FCA

Term of office:
Vice President since 1 January 2016

Date of next scheduled re-election:
31 December 2017

Term of office:
Director since December 2014

Date of next scheduled re-election:
N/A – term ends 31 December 2018

Skills, experience and expertise:
Jane is employed in the Internal Audit Division of Suncorp Group Limited. Prior to this she
held senior risk and finance positions at Suncorp and Macquarie Group Limited and has
worked across Asia, North America and Europe. Jane also holds several non-executive
director and committee positions in the not-for-profit and education sectors.
Jane has been a facilitator and marker for the ICAA’s Chartered Accountants Program
and was formerly Chair of the New South Wales Regional Council. She is a past recipient
of the ICAA’s President’s prize.

Board Committee memberships:
Council Member from 2014 and Vice President since 2016
Nominations and Governance Committee since 2016

Stephen Walker

BCom, FCA

BCA with Honours (1st Class), FCA

Term of office:

Skills, experience and expertise:
Mike has more than 38 years’ experience in the audit and accounting professions, in
both the public and private sectors.
He worked for four years as a finance director in the public health sector. Mike has
been active in standard-setting as a member of the former Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board, the UIG, AUASB, AASB and IPSASB.
In March 2016, Mike retired as Auditor-General of Tasmania after more than 11 years in
that role.

Board Committee membership:
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee since 2014

Michael Forde

BArts, Dip Accounting, FCA

Term of office:

Vice President since 1 January 2017

Director since December 2014

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Date of next scheduled re-election:

31 December 2018

N/A – term ends 31 December 2017

Skills, experience and expertise:

Skills, experience and expertise:

Stephen is the executive director for Audit New Zealand (which is the operating arm for
the Controller and Auditor-General of New Zealand). Prior to this, he was the director of
operations at the International Federation of Accountants based in New York from 2002
to 2008.
Stephen has worked around the world in roles supporting the accountancy profession
and the public sector. Specifically, his roles have been in auditing (external and internal),
standard setting, policy development, training and consultancy and for the past 15 years
in senior management roles.

Board Committee memberships:
Council member since 2014 and Vice President since 1 January 2017
NZ Regional Council, chair from 1 January 2017
Nominations and Governance Committee since January 2017
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Michael has over 20 years’ experience in investment banking, capital markets,
professional services, treasury and risk, in Australia, the UK and New Zealand.
He is currently working as a senior advisor with Aquasia, a small independent corporate
finance house, after 10 years in investment banking where he specialised in corporate
finance, capital markets and funding advisory.
Prior to working in banking, Michael was Group Treasurer with AMP and was with PwC in
both audit and financial risk advisory.

Board Committee membership:
Chair of the Executive Remuneration Committee since 2014
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Ming Long

BEc, LLB, FCA, MBA, FFin, GAICD

Neil Paviour-Smith
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BCA, FCA, AFA, MSAFAA

Term of office:

Term of office:

Director since 1 January 2017

Director since December 2014

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Date of next scheduled re-election:

December 2019

N/A – term ends 31 December 2017

Skills, experience and expertise:

Other Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand related entity
directorships and dates of office:

Ming has over 20 years’ experience in financial management, with over a decade in real
estate funds management, media and professional services.

NZ Institute of Chartered Accountants Regulatory Board, director from 2014

Ming spent over 11 years at Investa Property Group where she held numerous senior
executive positions, including Group Executive and Fund Manager for the listed Investa
Office Fund. She was also Group CFO and Joint Managing director of the Group.

Skills, experience and expertise:

Ming was named one of the 100 Women of Influence by the Australian Financial Review
and Westpac in 2016. She is currently a non-executive director and Chair of the Audit &
Risk Committee for AMP Capital Funds Management Limited, a non-executive director of
the Diversity Council of Australia and a member of the Finance and Audit Committee at
the University of Sydney.

Neil is a director of New Zealand Exchange Limited (NZX) and pro-Chancellor of
Victoria University of Wellington. In addition, he is an Authorised Financial Advisor, NZX
Advisor, chartered member of the Institute of Directors, an INFINZ fellow, member
of Governance NZ and the CFA Institute and is an accredited master member of the
Stockbrokers and Financial Advisors Association.

Board Committee membership:
Nil

John Palermo

BBus – Accounting and Finance, FCA

Term of office:

Neil has over 25 years’ experience in various roles in New Zealand capital markets.
He is the managing director of Forsyth Barr Ltd.

Neil was also an inaugural recipient of a Sir Peter Blake Trust Leadership Award
in 2005.

Board Committee membership:
Nil

Director since 1 October 2015

Penny Stragalinos

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Term of office:

December 2017

Skills, experience and expertise:
John has 20 years’ experience in public practice. Based in Perth, his areas of expertise
are in corporate transaction execution, strategic business management and business
structuring.
John was formerly Chair of the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Public Practice Advisory Committee and the Western Australia Regional Council.
John is also a member of the Executive of the National Trust (WA) and Deputy Chairman
of the Royal Perth Hospital Medical Research Foundation.

Board Committee membership:
Audit and Risk Committee since 2016

BCom, EMBA, FCA

Director since 1 January 2017

Date of next scheduled re-election:
31 December 2019

Skills, experience and expertise:
Penny is an audit partner with KPMG with over 20 years’ experience as an external
auditor and accounting and risk adviser, specialising in the energy and natural resources
industries and industrial markets. She has significant transaction services experience,
including acquisition, debt raising and share issue due diligence assignments.
Penny is the Head of Operational Transformation for KPMG’s Audit, Assurance & Risk
Consulting practice, and a Non-Executive director and Audit Committee Chair for
Victorian Opera. Until recently, Penny was also a member of the Audit Committee for the
Committee for Economic Development of Australia (CEDA).

Board Committee membership:
Nil
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Dianne McAteer

BCom, MBA

Term of office:
Director since 1 August 2016

Date of next scheduled re-election:
31 December 2019

Skills, experience and expertise:
Dianne has held numerous senior leadership positions with companies, including
House of Travel, Cadbury and Office Products Depot. She holds a varied portfolio of
directorships that includes the board of NZX-listed company Cavalier Corporation Ltd,
Chair of Beds R Us franchise, Chair of Netball Northern Zone, and independent director
for West Auckland Trust Services, Public Trust, Pulse Energy and Northcote Rd 1 Holdings
Ltd. Dianne is a chartered member of the Institute of Directors.

NZICA membership:
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RETIRED

Andrea Waters

BCom, FCA, GAICD

Term of office:
Director since December 2014

Date of next scheduled re-election:
N/A – Retired 31 December 2016

Skills, experience and expertise:
Andrea is a professional non-executive director with over 13 years’ experience on
boards. She had 28 years’ experience as an auditor with KPMG, and 16 years as a
partner, specialising in financial services. Andrea is an accredited facilitator for the
Australian Institute of Company Directors on the Company Director Course.

Board Committee membership:

New Zealand Regulatory Board since 1 August 2016

Audit and Risk Committee from 2015 to 2016

Board Committee membership:

Darren Scammell

Audit Risk Committee since 1 August 2016

Term of office:

Louise McCann

Vice President from December 2014, President from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Masters Management, FAICD, FAIM, FRSA

Term of office:

BEcon, FCA, ACCA, SA Fin

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Director since 1 January 2015

N/A Retired 31 December 2016

Date of next scheduled re-election:

Skills, experience and expertise:

Stepped down 10 August 2017

Skills, experience and expertise:
Louise has a background in media, commercial market research, marketing, brand and
communication sectors.
She currently holds non-executive directorships with Macquarie Media Limited, Grant
Thornton Australia Limited, University of Notre Dame Australia and Credit Union
Australia, and is Chairman for the CEO Institute Australia.

Board Committee membership:
Executive Remuneration Committee since August 2016
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Darren’s experience as an auditor and accountant, specialising in the financial services
industry, spans over 30 years in Australia and the UK.
Darren spent five years in London in the early 90s as well as from 2006 to 2008, and
two years in Adelaide – all with KPMG. He is now based in Melbourne.

Board Committee memberships:
Council Vice President from 2014 and President from 1 January to 31 December 2016
Nominations and Governance Committee from 2014 (term to conclude on
31 December 2017)
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Kevin Murphy FCA

Board skills and diversity

Term of office:

The Nominations and Governance Committee regularly reviews the structure and
composition of the Board to ensure that Directors have diverse and complementary skills,
perspectives and experience.

Vice President from 1 January 2015

Date of next scheduled re-election:
N/A – Retired 31 December 2016

Skills, experience and expertise:
Kevin has been the managing director and Chief Executive Officer of TSB Bank since
2010. He has more than 20 years’ experience at a senior executive level within TSB Bank,
contributing as finance manager then deputy CEO, before taking on his current role.

Committee meetings
DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE FROM 1 JULY 2016 TO 30 JUNE 2017

BOARD
Eligible

Attended

Mike Blake FCA

11

10

direction to position the organisation for growth within a competitive industry.

Cassandra Crowley FCA*

6

6

Kevin was awarded a fellowship in 2013. He represents the bank on many governance

Michael Forde FCA

11

11

Murray Jack FCA

11

11

Ming Long FCA*

6

6

Dianne McAteer**

10

10

Louise McCann

11

11

John Palermo FCA

11

11

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA

11

10

Darren Scammell FCA***

5

5

Penny Stragalinos FCA*

6

6

Andrea Waters FCA***

5

5

Kevin Murphy FCA***

5 (VP)

5 (VP)

Jane Stanton FCA

11 (VP)

9 (VP)

Stephen Walker FCA*

6 (VP)

6 (VP)

Kevin provides leadership, as well as strategic and operational direction to the bank.
Recently he spearheaded the bank’s review of its leadership structure and strategic

bodies and is currently a board member for Venture Taranaki.

Board Committee membership:
Council Vice President from 2015 to 2016
Nominations and Governance Committee from 2015 to 2016

About the Board
Our Board and its committees provide leadership to ensure we set and achieve our
strategic objectives and operate effectively and efficiently. The Board Charter details its
functions, responsibilities, powers and procedures.
The Board holds approximately eight meetings per year, as the Board determines
appropriate. One of these is a strategic planning meeting with the Strategic Leadership
Team (SLT). The CEO attends all Board meetings but the Board regularly holds Boardonly sessions.
The Board composition is 10 Directors, including two independent non-executive
Directors, who are not members of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand.
Recommendations for Board appointments are made to the Council by the Nominations
and Governance Committee for consideration and approval.

Director

*Appointed 1 January 2017 **Appointed 1 August 2016 ***Retired 31 December 2016 VP = Vice President – observer on Board only
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Members

NOMINATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Eligible

Attended

Members

Eligible

Attended

Michael Blake FCA (Chair)

5

5

Andrew Arkell FCA (Chair)

7

7

Murray Jack FCA (Observer only)

5

5

Cassandra Crowley FCA**

2

2

Dianne McAteer*

3

3

Michele Embling FCA***

1

1

John Palermo FCA

5

5

Fred Hutchings FCA*

5

4

Andrea Waters FCA**

2

2

Murray Jack FCA

7

7

Susie Johnstone FCA*

5

3

Kevin Murphy FCA*

5

4

*Appointed 1 August 2016 **Retired 31 December 2016

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Members

Eligible

Attended

Michael Forde FCA (Chair)

3

3

Murray Jack FCA

3

3

Louise McCann*

2

2

*Appointed 1 August 2016

Darren Scammell FCA*

7

6

Jane Stanton FCA

7

5

Stephen Walker FCA**

2

1

*Retired 31 December 2016 **Appointed 1 January 2017

***Appointed 26 April 2017

NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
REGULATORY BOARD
Members
Hugh Rennie QC
(Chair – Non-Director)
Dianne McAteer***
Kevin Murphy FCA* – ex-officio
as NZ Vice President
Neil Paviour-Smith FCA
Stephen Walker FCA** – ex-officio
as NZ Vice President

Eligible
6

6

6

4

3

2

6

6

3

3

*Retired 31 December 2016 ** Appointed 1 January 2017 *** Appointed 1 August 2016
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Corporate Governance Statement
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand was established under Royal
Charter in 1928 as a Body Politic and Corporate. Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand is not a company.

Governance review

As a body that wishes to carry on business in Australian states and territories, Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand is registered as a Australian body under Part
5B.2 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (Corporations Act). This registration requires
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand to comply with only a limited number
of sections of the Corporations Act. Other parts of the Corporations Act do not apply to
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand.

help us serve our members now and in the future. While the reviewers found the

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand was a member of the ASX
Corporate Governance Council that developed the Corporate Governance Principles
and Recommendations – 3rd Edition for Australia. We have adopted this framework
and applied it to our own governance where it is relevant to us as a Body Politic and
Corporate.

When we formed Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand in 2015, we
committed to conduct an independent governance review to ensure our model would
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand governance system to be sound,
they recommended a number of additional ideas to refine and strengthen it.
The Board considered the final recommendations from the review, and has established
a committee of members from across a range of groups to reflect on the proposed
changes, consider their implications and help develop an implementation plan. The
Board and Council will then review the implementation plan at its meetings in November
2017. Any matters that require By-law or rule changes will be progressed through the
normal member consultation process.

The framework provides guidance for effective decision-making in all areas of:

Delegation of authority

• strategic and operational planning;

In accordance with By-law 133A, the Board has delegated responsibility for the day-

• risk management and compliance;

to-day management of the organisation’s business and implementation of Chartered

• financial management and external reporting; and

Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s strategy and policy initiatives to the CEO

• succession planning and culture.

(and through the CEO, to the SLT).

The framework forms part of our corporate governance arrangements, through systems

Details of Board delegations are included in the Delegations Register, which is

of control and accountability outlined in our Supplemental Royal Charter, By-laws,

maintained by the Governance Manager. The Board reviews and approves Board

Rules of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZ Rules) and Chartered

delegations annually.

Accountants Australia and New Zealand Governance Manual, including the Code of
Conduct.
As a registered Australian body operating in a co-regulatory environment, we are
also required to comply with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
with respect to our financial reporting.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s Corporate Governance Statement
and a range of documents referred to in this Governance Statement are available at
charteredaccountantsanz.com/governance
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Our Framework
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

OVERSIGHT RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS REPORTING, RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS, INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS, COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL AND
EXTERNAL AUDIT.

RESPONSIBLE FOR DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS, DEVELOPING
STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTING BOARD POLICIES.

OVERSIGHT FROM THE BOARD, PERSPECTIVE OF MATTERS
RELATING TO REMUNERATION COSTS, CEO PERFORMANCE,
REMUNERATION POLICY AND STRATEGY.

ACCOUNTABILITY

DELEGATION

ASSURANCE,
OVERSIGHT

ASSURANCE,
DELEGATION

OVERSIGHT

DELEGATION

THROUGH

THROUGH
REPORTING.

REPORTING.

THE BOARD
•

NZICA REGULATORY BOARD

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS.

RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING NZ-BASED REGULATORY

•

FUNCTIONS ARE CARRIED OUT UNDER THE NZICA ACT
1996 WITH REGARDS TO NZ-BASED CA ANZ MEMBERS. HAS
OVERSIGHT OF NZ PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT COMMITTEE, NZ
APPEALS COUNCIL, NZ DISCIPLINARY TRIBUNAL, NZ PRACTICE

RESPONSIBILITY FOR STRATEGY RISK,
AND PERFORMANCE, WITH
OVERSIGHT OF POLICY AND

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OVERSIGHT OF THE PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT PROCESS AS
IT APPLIES TO AUSTRALIAN AND INTERNATIONAL NON-NEW ZEALAND MEMBERS.
CARRIED OUT BY THE PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT COMMITTEE , DISCIPLINARY
TRIBUNAL AND APPEALS TRIBUNAL.

OPERATIONAL ISSUES.

REVIEW ADVISORY GROUP AND NZ TAX ADVISORY GROUP.

EDUCATION BOARD
APPROVES AND OVERSEES ACADEMIC POLICIES RELATING TO THE GRADUATE
DIPLOMA OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTING AND RECOMMENDS CHANGES
TO NORMAL MEMBERSHIP ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS.

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE
• EXTERNAL AUDITORS
• INTERNAL AUDITORS
• INDEPENDENT LEGAL OR
PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

COUNCIL
APPOINTS AND EVALUATES PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD AND
NOMINATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE. APPROVES AWARDS
TO MEMBERS AND REPRESENTS THE INTERESTS OF THE
MEMBERSHIP AS A WHOLE.

NOMINATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MONITORS AND OVERSEES GOVERNANCE PROCESSES INCLUDING
NOMINATION AND SUCCESSION FOR THE BOARD, COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES.

OVERSEAS
LOCAL

MEMBERSHIP

LEADERSHIP TEAMS

SEGMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEES

REGIONAL COUNCILS

PROVIDES INPUT ON

REPRESENTATIVE ROLE, PROVIDES ADVICE TO MANAGEMENT AND COUNCIL

8 REGIONS, REPRESENTATIVE ROLE, ACTS AS A

LOCAL MEMBER
SEGMENTS, NEEDS
AND PREFERENCES.

ON MEMBER ISSUES BY SEGMENT, AND ASSISTS THE DEVELOPMENT OF

LINK BETWEEN THE BOARD AND THE MEMBERS IN
ITS RELEVANT REGION PROVIDING ADVICE TO BOARD
ON STRATEGIC POLICY AND MEMBER ISSUES.

INITIATIVES AND RESOURCES TO SUPPORT AND ENGAGE WITH MEMBERS.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND MEMBERS
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COMMITTEES
REPRESENTATIVE ROLE,
PROVIDES ADVICE TO BOARD
ON STRATEGIC POLICY AND
MEMBER ISSUES.
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Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand Education Board

Darren Scammell FCA, President
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Murray Harrington FCA (NZ)
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Cassandra Crowley FCA, President
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Hugh McKenzie FCA (Tas)

Associate Professor Julie Walker FCA,
Chair

Dr Julie Harrison CA

Jannine Mountford CA (NZ)
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Professor Howard Davey FCA, Deputy

John Murray FCA

Professor Ralph Adler FCA
(Appointed 12 July 2016)

Frank Newman FCA

Kevin Murphy FCA, Vice President NZ
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Jane Stanton FCA, Vice President

Baubre Murray FCA (NZ)
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Stephen Walker FCA (NZ), Vice President
NZ (Appointed 1 January 2017)

Peter O’Regan FCA (Qld)

Dató Richard Abas FCA (Asia)

Peter Rupp FCA (WA)

Dr Nives Botica-Redmayne FCA (NZ)
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Andrew Robinson FCA (RoW)

Richard Dey FCA (NZ)
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

John van Ruth FCA (SA)

Grant Ellis FCA (NZ)
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

David Robjent FCA (ACT)

David Thompson FCA (Vic)
Heather Watson FCA (NSW)

NZICA Regulatory Board
Hugh Rennie QC, Chair
Dianne McAteer, non-member
(Appointed 1 August 2016)

Gordon Mackenzie CA

Rosemary Chung FCA

Professor Matthew Pinnuck
(Appointed 12 July 2016)

Owen Gibson CA

Hayley Underwood FCA

Darryn Hall CA
(Appointed 12 July 2016)

Professor Graeme Wines CA
(Retired 5 April 2017)

Professional Conduct Oversight Committee
Nancy Dolan, Chair
(Appointed 15 July 2016)

Andrew Stevens FCA
(Appointed 1 August 2016)

Juliet Low CA
(Appointed 1 August 2016)

John Trowbridge
(Appointed 1 August 2016)

Stephen Walker FCA, ex-officio
as NZ Vice President
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Kevin Murphy FCA, ex-officio as NZ Vice
President (Retired 31 December 2016)
Neil Paviour-Smith FCA
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Regional Councils

NSW

QUEENSLAND

VICTORIA

Australia

Cameron Johnstone FCA,
Chair (Retired 31 December 2016)

Troy Popham FCA, Chair

Taryn Rulton FCA, Chair

Richard Wanstall FCA, Vice Chair

Charles McNeill FCA, Vice Chair

Kate Boorer FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017
(Vice Chair to 31 December 2016))

Kaylene Gaffney FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Bill Edge FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Matthew Green FCA
(Appointed 4 May 2017)

Timothy Holden FCA

Anthony Hoffman FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2017) (Deceased)

Julia Langdon FCA

ACT
Lorraine Watt FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Rahul Verma CA, Vice Chair
Kate Dean CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Courtney Dennett CA
Ian Goodwin CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Amy Fox CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Prof Peter Wells FCA, Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
George Bogdanovic CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Timothy Kirby CA
Wendy Patterson FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

R Duncan Honore-Morris FCA

Peter O’Regan FCA

Paul Meissner FCA

Susan Rix FCA

Matthew Pringle FCA
(Retired February 2017)

Glenn Russell FCA
Chris Ryan CA

Liz Smith CA
(Appointed June 2017)

Andrew Robertson CA

Shane Simmons FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA
(Retired June 2017)

Ross Tilly FCA

John Thynne FCA

Carla Jago FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

William Yan CA

TASMANIA

Prof Glennda Scully FCA, Chair

SA/NT

David Nelan FCA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

(Retired 31 December 2016)

Cameron Lynch CA

Paul Breen FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Con Abbott FCA

Lyndal Kimpton CA Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Amanda Cox FCA

John Nguyen FCA
(Appointed June 2017)
David Robjent FCA
Adam Stennett CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Robert Andrew Sykes FCA
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WA

Heather Watson FCA

John van Ruth FCA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016, Ex Officio)
Nigel Stevenson FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

David Thompson FCA

Doug Craig FCA, Chair
Matthew Allen FCA

Ben Coull FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Evelyn Hogg FCA

John Medlin FCA

James Louw CA
(Retired October 2016)

Ron Louis FCA

Anna Nolan FCA

Daniel McCarthy FCA

Nathan Reichstein CA

Hugh McKenzie FCA

Stacey Quinn FCA

Anita Robertson CA

Luke Kerins CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Rebecca Williams CA

Bruce Debenham FCA, Vice Chair
Matthew King FCA

Tinashe Kamangira CA
Peter Rupp FCA

< <<
New Zealand
Kevin Murphy FCA, NZ Vice President
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Stephen Walker FCA, NZ Vice President
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Mike Atkinson CA

Dale Ching CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Cassandra Crowley FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Richard Dey FCA
Angela Dixon CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Matt Bolton CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Grant Ellis FCA

Nives Botica-Redmayne FCA

Lucy Hickman CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Murray Harrington FCA

2017 Annual report

Bob King AT, Fellow

Michael Prasad CA

Angela Leong CA
(Appointed 21 March 2017)

John Schol CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Paul McElwee CA

Aaron Snodgrass CA

Baubre Murray FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Michael Stowers CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Carla O’Donnell CA
(Appointed 21 March 2017)

Phillippa Wilson CA

Sam Tangitau CA

Judith Pinny CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Segment Advisory Committees
PUBLIC PRACTICE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

David Ross CA
Greg Sheehan CA

Tracey Hook CA
(Appointed 1 October 2016)

David Armstrong FCA, Chair

Amanda Watt CA

Ben Jordan CA

Michael Rondel FCA (Vice-Chair)
Mark Bain CA
Joanne Doyle FCA
(Retired 31 March 2017)

CORPORATE SEGMENT
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Kevin Clarke CA
Carolyn Cordery FCA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Fiona McKissock CA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Louise Edwards FCA

Sharyn Mitchell CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Julia Fletcher CA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Craig Fisher FCA

Simon Graetz FCA

William Ooi FCA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Jane Muirsmith FCA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Linda Gray FCA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Lincoln Tong FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Anita Furnell CA
(Retired 31 March 2017)

David Paynter CA
(Retired 31 September 2016)

David Gilchrist FCA

Peter Guise CA

Paul Barnicoat FCA

Rob Perkins CA (FCA – ICAEW)

Anthony Hoffman FCA (Deceased)

Shane Simmons FCA

Tim Holden FCA

Tony Candy CA
(Retired 31 September 2016)

Alicia Leis FCA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Colleen Chapman CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Ron Louis FCA

Mark Conelly FCA

Stephen Lucy CA
(Retired 31 March 2017)

Darren Laarhoven FCA
Bernard Lamusse FCA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)
Daniel Papallo CA

CHARITIES & NOT-FOR-PROFIT
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Michelle Pearce FCA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Murray Dickinson CA
(Retired 31 March 2017)

Bill Edge FCA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Andrea Petersen FCA
(Retired 30 June 2016)

Paul Meissner FCA

Peter Dikranis CA
Corey Docking CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Graeme Rodda FCA
(Appointed 1 October 2016)

Baubre Murray FCA

Kerry Hicks FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Stuart Burns FCA
(Retired 30 June 2017)

John Stubley FCA

Michael Prasad CA

Simon Jones CA

Mark Twomey CA
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REGIONAL & RURAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

NZ PUBLIC SECTOR
CONSULTATION COMMITTEE

Jonathan Forrest FCA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Darren Mitchell CA, Chair

Bruce Debenham FCA, Chair
(Retired 1 January 2017)

Phillippa Wilson CA

Sarah Becker CA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

Robert Cox CA

Peter Catterson FCA
(Retired 30 June 2017)

Craig Owen CA
Robert Nelson CA
Ron Pearson CA
Julie-Anne Morrison CA

Maria Cavallo CA

Fergus Welsh CA

Josh Fletcher CA

Jo Devine CA

Chris Kol FCA
Damian Mulherin FCA
Peter O’Regan FCA
Kay Plummer FCA

NZ RURAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
Marilyn Davies FCA, Chair
Trudi Ballantyne FCA

Overseas
Membership Committees
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
(HONG KONG) LIMITED
Christine Tsang FCA, Chair
(Retired 1 October 2016)

George Collier CA

Portia Tang FCA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Hamish McDonald CA

Samuel Cheng FCA, Treasurer

Richard Perry FCA

Michael Chan FCA

Charles Rau CA

Travis Huggins CA, Vice Chair

Cros Spooner CA

Tommy Ip CA
(Appointed 1 October 2016)

Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA
Fiona Stockdill CA
Frazer Weir CA

Lillian Lam CA
(Retired 1 October 2016)
Vincent Leung CA
(Appointed 1 October 2016)
Michael Pang FCA
Ingrid Wong FCA
(Retired 1 October 2016)
Mason Wu FCA
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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
(SINGAPORE) PRIVATE LIMITED

Gladys Lim FCA

Dione Schick FCA, Chair
(Retired 19 September 2016)

Jen Shaun Wong CA
(Appointed 14 February 2017)

Andrew Er FCA, Chair
(Appointed 19 September 2016)

CAANZ (UK) LIMITED

Leonard Woo Chi Leong FCA
(Appointed 27 February 2017)
Siew Theng Leong FCA
David Leow FCA
Don Northey FCA

Dr Wilson Tay FCA
Daniel Wong Chan Wai CA

Tracey Lee FACA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Paul McKechnie CA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Bryan O’Loughlan CA

Patrick Arnfield CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

(Appointed 27 February 2017)
Anand Sachdev CA, Vice Chair Cynthia

Jessica Dixon CA

Soh CA

Chris Hamilton CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Will Tipping CA

Craig Jenner ACA, Vice Chair

Matthew Waters CA

Daniel Leckey CA, Vice Chair

(Retired 3 February 2017)

CA ANZ (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD
Dato’ Heng Ji Keng FCA, Chair
(Retired 20 December 2016)
Shafiq Abdul Jabbar FCA, Chair
(Appointed 14 February 2017)
Dato’ Gabriel Choong CA
Yap Ai Di CA
Retired 1 December 2016)
Firdaus Ghani CA
(Appointed 14 February 2017)
Tan Yoon Huat CA
Dato’ Zahir Zahur Hussain FCA
(Appointed 14 February 2017)
Leonard Woo Chi Leong FCA
(Retired 24 November 2016)

Vanessa Lennie CA
Craig Leyland CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Dean Locke CA
Andrew Robinson FCA
(CA ANZ Rest of World Councillor)
Stuart Scoular
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Lauren Temple CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
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Karen Bell CA

GISBORNE / EAST COAST

TARANAKI

Jeffrey Burson CA

Robyn Tomlinson CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Wesley Gillanders CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Cathy Moorcroft CA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Amy Lewis AT, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Sarah Kessell CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Catherine Chrisp CA

Jenna Blake CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Kaison Chang
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Anne Lensink CA

Michelle Hall CA

Paul Churchman
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Jessica Zappelli AT
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Auckland Region
AUCKLAND
Andrée Atkinson CA, Chair

Jason Clifton
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Anna Davis
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Swathy Gudipoodi CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Stanley Koo CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
John Larner CA
Michael Leightley CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Jerusalem (Jai) Nario
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Bruce Rankine
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Kylee Rich CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Avasha Singh CA

NORTHLAND
Stephen Ganley CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Tim Wilson ACA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

John Dykzeul CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Angela Edwards CA

Eddie Roberts CA

Rest of North Island
(RONI) Region
BAY OF PLENTY
Joelene Ranby CA, Chair
Maree Graham CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
David Jensen CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Quintan Moore ACA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Joanna Frain CA
Philip McLeod CA
Barry Vryenhoek ACA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Paul Duynhoven CA
(Resigned 31 December 2016)

HAWKES BAY

AnneMarie Karaka CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Craig Riddiford CA, Chair

Liz Maddox-Strong CA

Sarah Walker CA, Vice Chair

Chris Sole FCA

Julie Brockelbank CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Suzie Clifford CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Alastair Cromie CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Gill Easton ACA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Nicky Old CA
(Appointed 1 January 2016)

Bill Gilmour CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Sarah Riches CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Lisa Hardie ACA

David Veitch CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Dawn Witherford CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Paul Wollaston CA, Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Marilyn Davies FCA
(Resigned 28 July 2016)

Hamish White CA

Linda Nouwens CA

Kiran Watkins CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Servaas Botha CA
(Resigned 31 December 2016)

Abby Mackinlay CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Alison Pavlovich CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Mark Scott CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Fiona Stockdill CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Paul Walker CA

WAIKATO
Ray Hancox CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Julian So CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Aileen Davey CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Grant Eddy CA
Darwin Ginty CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Matt Laing CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Peter Myall ACA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Alice Thame CA, Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Sarah Woolerton CA
Alecia Wright CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
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Wellington Region

WELLINGTON

South Island Region

MANAWATU

Peter Scholtens CA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

MARLBOROUGH / NELSON

Hamish Bowen CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Nick Dalgety CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Andrew Douglas CA

Jacqueline d’Ath CA

Nita van Grinsven CA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Kane Templer CA

Vicky Richter CA, Chair
Brian Holmes CA
Leanne MacDonald CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
David Moir CA
Billie Stanley CA
Justine Street CA
Neil Wanden CA

WAIRARAPA
Thomas Westgarth CA, Chair
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Fiona Cameron AT, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Sue Eagle AT
Nikki Hosking CA, Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Melanie Rowe AT
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Felicity Tate CA
Michael Turner
(Appointed 1 January 2017)
Kathrine Way CA

Jason Grimstrup CA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)
Saimon Lomaloma CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Philip Major CA
Jane Mitson CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Michael Drummond CA
Hamish Tomlinson CA
John Van der Burg CA

CANTERBURY / WESTLAND

Judith Pinny CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Michael Rondel CA, Chair
(Resigned 31 December 2016)

Kate Silvester CA

Kelvin Mason CA, Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Fiona Stockdill CA
(Appointed 1 April 2017)

WHANGANUI
Sharyn Pearce CA, Chair
(Retied 31 December 2016)

Scott Brown CA

Ian Calvert CA
Andrew Hamilton CA
Rosalind Whiting CA
Aneesha Varghese
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

SOUTHLAND
Brad Phillips CA, Chair
Mary-Anne Bricknell ACA
Nigel James CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
Sheree Marrah CA
Larry Mitchell CA
Holly Russell CA

John Goulding CA

John Schol CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Matt Kinraid CA, Vice Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Sarah Valli CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Anne Marett FCA

Zoe Graham
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Brent Hood CA Chair
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Fiona McKissock CA
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Gaylene Jones CA

Laura Roseveare CA

Matthew Power CA

Erina Stockman CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Cameron Town CA

Mike Hawken CA, Chair

Louise Staite CA

Sally Newcombe CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)

Glenn Spooner CA
(Retired 31 December 2016)
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International representatives (on behalf of the profession)
International federation of accountants

Directors of Subsidiaries

Representative

Committee

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

Rachel Grimes FCA

Board (IFAC President 2017-2018)

(Singapore) Private Limited

Richard Petty FCA

Board

A Er FCA

Director

Appointed 31 May 2017

Anne Loveridge FCA

Nominating Committee

Director

Michael Blake FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board

D Schick FCA

Appointed
27 November 2014

J Paterson CA

Director

Appointed 31 May 2017

Angela Ryan FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board

L White FCA

Director

Penny Egan FCA

Compliance Advisory Panel

Appointed
27 November 2014
Resigned 31 May 2017

Robyn Erskine CA

Small and Medium Practices

S Grant FCA

Director

Paul Urquhart FCA

Professional Accountants in Business Committee

Appointed
27 November 2014

Ian McPhee FCA

International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants

Lyn Provost FCA

International Auditing and Assurance Board
(Appointed 1 January 2017)

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Hong Kong) Limited
C Tsang

Director

Appointed 1 April 2017

J Paterson CA

Director

Appointed 1 April 2017

K Dowling FCA

Director

Appointed 7 May 2015

L White FCA

Director

Appointed
8 January 2015
Resigned 31 May 2017

S Grant FCA

Director

Appointed
8 January 2015

Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants
Low Weng Keong FCA

Representative/director

Gill Cox FCA

Representative/director
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CA ANZ (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

CAANZ ANZ (UK) Limited
Appointed 22 September
2016

D H Ji-Keng FCA

Director

Appointed 10 July 2015

I Leggett FCA

Director

D R Abas FCA

Director

Appointed 26 January
2017

J Paterson CA

Director

Appointed 31 May 2017

L White FCA

Director

J Paterson CA

Director

Appointed 31 May 2017

Appointed 6 May 2015
Resigned 31 May 2017

K Picard FCA

Director

Appointed 10 July 2015
Resigned 28 October 2016

S Alwis FCA

Director

Appointed 6 May 2015
Resigned 22 September
2016

L White FCA

Director

Appointed 10 July 2015
Resigned 31 May 2017

S Grant FCA

Director

Appointed 6 May 2015

S Grant FCA

Director

Appointed 10 July 2015

Chartered Professional Accountants Pty Limited

W C Leong FCA

Director

Appointed 10 July 2015

J Paterson CA

Director

Appointed 31 May 2017

L White FCA

Director

Resigned 31 May 2017

Note: None of these directors received any remuneration in their capacity as directors of the entities indicated.
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Key policies
Diversity

Privacy policy

We recognise that a diverse and inclusive workforce contributes to better outcomes for

We take privacy and data security seriously. We are committed to safeguarding the

our people and members.

personal information of individuals and fostering a corporate culture that values privacy.

We are implementing updated policies on Diversity and Inclusiveness and
Preventing Discrimination, Harassment and Bullying within our workplace to
support our commitment to diversity.

We deal with personal information in accordance with the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth),

We encourage participation in groups within our workplace such as the Women’s
Development Circle.
We continue to report under the Australian Workplace Gender Equality Act. A copy
of the most recent Gender Equality Indicators for our Australia-based people can be
viewed at wgea.gov.au/report/public-reports.

the Privacy Act 1993 (NZ), the Australian Privacy Principles and the New Zealand
Information Privacy Principles. We also comply with the Spam Act 2003 (Cth) and the
Unsolicited Electronic Messages Act 2007 (NZ), both of which impose restrictions on
sending commercial electronic messages.
We also have a Privacy Officer who responds to enquiries, complaints and requests for
access to personal information as they arise.
You can view a copy of our privacy policy at charteredaccountantsanz.com/privacypolicy

Code of Conduct
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand has a formal Code of Conduct for
Directors and members of the governance bodies. The Code of Conduct for our Board
and Board Sub-Committees sets out expectations that apply to each Director and
member of the governance bodies regarding professional ethics and behaviour. You
can view a copy of the Code of Conduct for Directors and members of the governance

Work health and safety
We are committed to providing a safe and healthy place to work. This means that we will:
• meet and exceed all health and safety requirements;
• work in a way that keeps our people and others safe;

bodies set out in the Governance Manual on our website: charteredaccountantsanz.

• stop any work that cannot be carried out safely;

com/governance

• be open to new ways of being healthier and safer;

The Code of Conduct for our people is currently under review and is due to be launched

• not take shortcuts or put business objectives ahead of health and safety; and

by the end of this year.

• work with our people to involve them in providing a safe and healthy workplace.

Whistleblower policy
We are committed to a corporate culture that encourages the reporting and
investigation of serious wrongdoing to protect the integrity of our business and ensure
ethical behaviour. Our whistleblower policy sets out guidelines for our people if they wish
to raise any concerns about serious wrongdoing in the workplace.
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Risk management

Corporate reporting

We are committed to building a strong risk awareness culture. We have a risk

The Audit and Risk Committee’s key objective is to fulfil its corporate governance and

management policy and framework for managing risk, ensuring continuity of business

oversight responsibilities regarding Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

through critical situations and disaster recovery.

and any trusts and/or legal entities established or managed by Chartered Accountants

Our risk management framework aligns with international standard ISO 31000:2009
Risk Management and operates through:
• organisational commitment;
• planning;
• programmes;
• communication and consultation; and
• continuous improvement.
The Board is responsible for approving the overall risk management framework for
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand. Each year, our management
reviews and recommends a risk management framework to the Board, including specific
risk categories and a risk consequence table, which are used to set the organisation’s risk
appetite. The Board monitors management’s performance in accordance with that risk
framework.
Responsibility for risk management is shared across all levels of our organisation. At

Australia and New Zealand. This responsibility covers:
• financial reporting;
• risk management systems;
• internal control systems;
• compliance; and
• internal and external audit arrangements.
For more information about the Audit and Risk Committee see the Corporate
Governance Statement, available at charteredaccountantsanz.com/governance

Performance and remuneration
PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s Board undertakes an annual
performance review, facilitated by the Nominations and Governance Committee.

a management level, the SLT identifies, assesses, monitors and manages strategic

An annual review of Board performance is undertaken in September with a report on

and emerging risks, using the risk framework. It also oversees the management of

results from the review being provided to the Nominations and Governance Committee.

operational risks and compliance across the organisation.

A report and action plan is provided to the Council to consider at its meeting in

Our independent internal and external auditors also review key risk areas. The Internal
Audit Program is closely aligned to the risk management framework and involves a
rolling programme of reviews to confirm the effectiveness of the controls in place.

Findings of the internal audit are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee, which
monitors any recommendations arising from the audits.

November.

PERFORMANCE OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
Each year, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) reviews the SLT’s performance and reports
to the Executive Remuneration Committee and Board.
Each executive is assessed based on:
• leadership of specific business and strategic objectives;
• achievement of the organisation’s key performance indicators; and
• role modelling our preferred culture.
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DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The By-laws state that remuneration of the Directors, President and Vice Presidents will be:

The Executive Remuneration Committee:

• determined by the Council, based on a recommendation from the Nominations and
Governance Committee;

• helps the Board consider the performance, remuneration and retention of the CEO
and SLT; and

• in line with market rates;

• agrees the remuneration strategy for the organisation including the budget allocation.

• within the parameters and principles approved by members; and
• based on independent advice to the Nominations and Governance Committee.
To determine fees for Directors and Office Bearers, external market benchmark data
from ProNed Australia Pty Ltd is reviewed and the following levels set and approved by
the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council. These fees are at the
same level as those paid in previous year.

The CEO is eligible for a bonus payment subject to the Board evaluating and approving
their performance against a range of indicators, including:
• overall performance of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand; and
• achievement of key performance targets that reflect the breadth of our strategic and
priority activities.
As Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is not a listed entity, it does not

Fees by role

provide an equity-based remuneration scheme.

President – 120% of the Chair fee

$120,000

Vice President

$60,000

Chair – double the Director fee

$100,000

Director

$50,000

Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

$60,000

For more information about the Nominations and Governance Committee, see the
Governance Statement, at charteredaccountantsanz.com/governance

This table shows the number of executives holding Strategic Leadership Team positions,
as at 30 June, whose annual contractual remuneration falls within the following bands:

Band

2017

2016

$0 to $199,999

-

-

$200,000 to $249,999

1

-

$250,000 to $299,999

1

2

$300,000 to $349,999

2

1

$350,000 to $399,999

3

1

$400,000 to $449,999

-

1

$450,000 to $499,999

1

2

$500,000 to $749,999

-

-

$750,000 to $799,999

-

1

Note that the 2017 numbers exclude Lee White, whose tenure as Chief Executive Officer finished as at 31 May 2017.
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
This table sets out the remuneration of Lee White while the Chief Executive Officer. It includes his ‘at risk’ component for Financial Years 2016 and 2017.

Year

Salary and leave

At risk

Total

2017

550,000

125,000

675,000

2016

600,000

168,750

768,750

In his capacity as Interim Chief Executive Officer, from 1 June 2017 through 2 August 2017, Simon Grant was paid an additional amount of $14,761 per month, on top of his existing
annual remuneration as Head of Members, of $381,323.

OTHER BOARD AND COMMITTEE REMUNERATION
Council

Office bearers received remuneration for their services. All other Councillors serve in a volunteer capacity and received no
remuneration or benefits for their services.

Audit and Risk Committee

All members are Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Directors and received remuneration in their capacity as
Directors. The Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee received additional fees.

Nominations and Governance Committee

The independent member serving as Chair received remuneration of $5,000 during the period. The second independent
member was not remunerated, received no benefits, and served in a volunteer capacity.
Office Bearers and Directors received remuneration for their roles as a Board member or office bearers of other committees.
However, they receive no additional fees as members of the Nominations and Governance Committee.
The immediate Past President serves in a volunteer capacity and received no remuneration or benefits.

Executive Remuneration Committee

All members are Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Directors and received remuneration in their capacity as
directors. However, they receive no additional fees to participate on the Executive Remuneration Committee.

New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants

The Chair is remunerated NZ$15,000 per annum. Other members are Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

Regulatory Board

Directors or Office Bearers and do not receive any additional remuneration for membership of this Board.

Education Board

All members of the Education Board serve in a volunteer capacity and receive no remuneration or benefits for their services.

Professional Conduct Oversight Committee*

The chair of the Professional Conduct Oversight Committee is remunerated $30,000 per annum.

Professional Conduct Committee*

*Members of each of the four disciplinary panels are remunerated on a commercial basis for their services.

Disciplinary Tribunal*
Appeals Tribunal*
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2017
Notes

2017
$’000
127,882
2,534

2016
$’000
121,624
2,900

3(a)

130,416

124,524

(31,282)
(8,828)
(71,000)
(18,159)
(7,917)

(29,683)
(8,914)
(69,765)
(16,326)
(8,014)

(137,186)

(132,702)

(6,770)

(8,178)

Revenue
Other income
Total revenue and other income
Service expenses
Occupancy expenses
Administration expenses
Information technology expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses
(Deficit) before tax
Income tax expense

4

(Deficit) after tax

-

-

(6,770)

(8,178)

(15)
4,994

120
3,370

Total other comprehensive income

4,979

3,490

Total comprehensive (deficit) for the year, net of tax

(1,791)

(4,688)

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Fair value increment of freehold property

This Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2017
Notes

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

5
6

44,135
17,266

52,130
19,458

61,401

71,588

135
71,323
8,375
1,744

66,721
5,233
2,450

81,577

74,404

142,978

145,992

10
11
12

56,553
9,254
5,254
71,061

54,241
13,291
4,592
72,124

11
12

1,297
802

1,235
1,024

2,099

2,259

Total liabilities

73,160

74,383

Net assets

69,818

71,609

Members’ funds
Amalgamation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated surpluses

6,078
(359)
24,761
39,338

6,078
(344)
19,767
46,108

Total members’ funds

69,818

71,609

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Prepayments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress

7
8
9

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Fees in advance
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

This Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2017
Amalgamation
reserve
$’000
At 1 July 2016

Foreign currency
translation reserve
$’000

Revaluation
reserve
$’000

Accumulated
surpluses
$’000

Total
$’000

46,108

71,609

6,078

(344)

19,767

(Deficit) after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

(15)

4,994

(6,770)
-

(6,770)
4,979

Total comprehensive (deficit)

-

(15)

4,994

(6,770)

(1,791)

At 30 June 2017

6,078

(359)

24,761

39,338

69,818

At 1 July 2015

6,078

(464)

16,397

54,286

76,297

(Deficit) after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

120

3,370

Total comprehensive (deficit)

-

120

3,370

(344)

19,767

At 30 June 2016
This Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2017
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from members and customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net (payment)/refund for GST
Net cash flows from operating activities

2017
$’000
145,250
(139,940)
(3,651)

2016
$’000
136,144
(133,262)
2,872

1,659

5,754

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment, intangibles and capital work-in-progress assets
Interest received

7
(10,252)
606

28
(5,681)
1,175

Net cash flows from investing activities

(9,639)

(4,478)

5

Net cash flows from financing activities

-

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effects of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

5

-

(7,980)
(15)
52,130

1,276
120
50,734

44,135

52,130

This Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Chartered Accountants Australia and

(a) Basis of preparation

New Zealand and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017

This General Purpose Financial Report is prepared in accordance with Australian

were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of Directors on 28 September 2017.

Accounting Standards (AIFRS) and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is an Australian registered body
corporate that is governed by its Supplemental Royal Charter and is domiciled in Australia.
Members of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand are not liable for the
debts and liabilities of the Group.

Accounting Standards Board (AASB) to meet the needs of the reporting requirements
under the By-laws. It has been prepared based on historical cost, except for freehold
property which has been measured at fair value (see note 7).
Unless otherwise stated, the report is presented in Australian dollars (AUD) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

About Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (‘parent’)
The registered office of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is:
33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000

The Consolidated Financial Report refers to the parent and its subsidiaries as if they
formed a single entity. It is made up of:
• the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;
• the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position;

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is a not-for-profit entity. Its principal

• the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity;

activities during the year were:

• the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows; and

• delivering pre and post admission education and other services;

• Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

• setting and maintaining high standards as they apply to members, to enhance their
professional standing with the public and the business community;
• continuing development of government relations and advocacy programmes in pursuit
of legislative and regulatory objectives; and
• continuing development of a programme to enhance the market and personal value of
the Chartered Accountant designation.

The parent controls a subsidiary if all three of the following elements are present:
• power over the investee;
• exposure to variable returns from the investee; and
• the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Inter-entity transactions and balances between the parent and subsidiaries are
eliminated on consolidation. See note 16 for details of subsidiaries.
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(b) Statement of compliance
This Consolidated Financial Report complies with Australian Accounting Standards.

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2017

• AASB 16 Leases removes the current operating and finance lease distinction, and
requires entities to recognise all material leases on the balance sheet. AASB 16 will
become mandatory for the 30 June 2020 financial statements, and the Group is

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
The following Australian Accounting Standards and AASB Interpretations were recently
issued or amended, but were not yet effective and were not adopted for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2017:
• AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. AASB 9 will become mandatory for the Group’s 30
June 2019 financial statements; however, it is not expected to have a material impact.
• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue. AASB 15 will become mandatory for the 30 June

assessing the potential impact of applying this new standard.
There are no new interpretations expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Report.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
In applying the entity’s accounting policies, management continually evaluates judgments,
estimates and assumptions based on experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have an impact on the entity.

2020 financial statements, and the Group is assessing the potential impact of applying

All judgments, estimates and assumptions are believed to be reasonable based on the

this new standard.

most current set of circumstances available to management. Actual results may differ

• AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities simplifies the income recognition

under different conditions from when the judgments, estimates and assumptions were

requirements that apply to not-for-profit entities, in conjunction with AASB 15 Revenue

made. Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions made by management in the

from Contracts with Customers. AASB 1058 will become mandatory for the 30 June

preparation of these financial statements are described in the various notes.

2020 financial statements, and the Group is assessing the potential impact of applying

Other significant accounting policies are described in the notes.

this new standard.
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3. REVENUE AND EXPENSES
Revenue and expense recognition
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

70,177

65,559

(a) Revenue
Subscriptions and related revenue
Education and other services
Total revenue
Other income
Rent
Royalties
Interest
Other revenue/(losses)

57,705

56,065

127,882

121,624

1,724
209
602
(1)

Total other income
Total revenue and other income

1,541
202
1,135
22

2,534

2,900

130,416

124,524

52,731
3,777

49,127
3,238

56,508

52,365

(b) Expenses
The main component of expenses is employee benefits which comprised:
Wages, salaries and termination costs
Superannuation

Included in total expenses is $1,165,000 in relation to the development of a strategic alliance with the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) entered into in June 2016.

Revenues and expenses are recognised where:

There has been a reclassification between subscriptions and related revenue and

• it is probable that their economic benefits will flow to, or be consumed by, the Group;

education and other services’ revenue in 2016. This change had no impact on total

• they can be reliably measured; and

revenue or surplus after tax in 2016.

• they meet the criteria set out below.

There has also been a $536,000 net-off between revenue and expenses in the 2016
comparative year. This change also had no impact on deficit after tax in 2016.
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3. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (continued)
(I) Subscriptions

(III) Sale of goods

The Group’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30 June, with fees payable annually

The Group recognises revenue from the sale of goods when physical control of the goods

in advance. Only those member fee receipts that are attributable to the current financial

passes to the purchaser pursuant to an enforceable sales contract. Risks and rewards of

year are recognised as revenue.

ownership are considered to be passed to the buyer at the time the goods are delivered to

Fee receipts for periods beyond the current financial year are shown (excluding any
applicable taxes), in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, under the heading
Current liabilities as Fees in Advance.

(II) Other revenue-generating activities
The Group undertakes certain activities which are accounted for on a work-in-progress
basis, including:
• Chartered Accountants Program modules;
• training and development courses;
• quality reviews;
• acuity magazine;
• conferences; and
• student activities.
How we accrue for these activities depends on when they take place:

them.

(IV) Member benefits revenue
The Group receives revenue from member-generated activity through its member offers
program. This revenue is accounted on an accruals basis.

(V) Interest income
Interest income on deposits is recognised on an accrual basis.

(VI) Expenses
Unless otherwise identified, expenses are brought to account on an accruals basis. Policies
relating to major categories of expenditure are:
• Employment benefit expenses
See note 12 for employee benefit expenses.
• Operating leases

• On or before year end – any surplus or deficit is incorporated into the year’s results.

Operating lease payments and lease incentives are recognised as an expense in the

• Wholly after the end of the financial year – revenue and expenses for such activities

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis

are deferred and carried forward in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as
fees in advance and prepayments respectively.
• Partly after the end of the financial year – a proportion of the final projected net surplus
is also recognised in the financial year, on a percentage of completion basis.
The percentage of completion basis is apportioned as follows:

over the lease term.
• Depreciation
See note 7 for depreciation expenses.
• Amortisation
See note 8 for amortisation expenses.

• For Chartered Accountants Program modules, according to the time between the start
of the module and the completion of the examination.
• For other courses and activities that are delivered in a series of events, according to the
number of events delivered at balance date compared to the total number of events in
the series.
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4. INCOME TAX

(a) Income tax expense
The major components of income tax are:
Current income tax (benefit)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit)

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

(1,094)
637
457

(1,465)
405
1,060

-

-

(b) Numerical reconciliation between tax expense/(benefit) recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and prima facie income tax
(Deficit) before tax

(6,770)

(8,178)

Prima facie tax (benefit) at the rate of 30% (2016: 30%)
Adjustments for current income tax of previous years
Entertainment, non-deductible donations, other permanent differences
New premises rent holiday
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdictions
Mutual activities (adjusted for specifically deductible expenses)
Tax losses carried forward to future years

(2,031)
637
(73)
108
902
457

(2,453)
405
(21)
(4)
103
910
1,060

Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit)

-

-

Income tax

All other receipts and payments are classified in accordance with taxation legislation in the

The Group prepares its income tax returns using the principle of mutuality to the revenue

relevant tax jurisdiction.

and expenses and the relevant tax jurisdiction. The principle of mutuality is a common law
principle based on the premise that individuals cannot profit from themselves.
As such:
• Membership receipts from members are deemed to be mutual income and not subject
to income tax.
• Expenses connected with mutual activities are therefore not deductible for taxation
purposes.
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Deferred tax assets are not recognised for deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits. This is because it is unlikely that the
Group will generate future taxable profit which will be available to offset against.
At balance date, accumulated revenue tax losses of $34,040,000 (2016: $32,517,000)
existed, and net deferred tax liabilities of unrecognised temporary differences amount to
$2,809,000 (2016: $2,468,000) that were not recognised on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term deposits

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

27,135
17,000

45,877
6,253

44,135

52,130

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows include cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits,
and are stated at their nominal value.

Reconciliation of (Deficit) after tax to cash flows from operations
(Deficit) after tax

(6,770)

(8,178)

Adjustment:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Other (revenue)/losses
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Interest received

4,225
1
3,975
(606)

4,073
(22)
2,290
(1,175)

7,595

5,166

2,057
(3,975)
440
2,312

(7,479)
6,457
152
9,636

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables and prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions
Increase in fees in advance
Net cash flows from operating activities

834

8,766

1,659

5,754
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

12,363
(622)

14,253
(658)

11,741

13,595

Non-trade receivables (b)
Other receivables
Prepayments
Loan receivable (c)

192
5,183
150

300
5,563
-

Total trade and other receivables

17,266

19,458

(a) At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired

9,106

11,767

Past due but not impaired:
31 – 60 days
61 – 90 days
> 90 days

2,169
106
360

797
163
868

2,635

1,828

622

658

622

658

12,363

14,253

Current
Trade receivables (a)
Allowance for impairment loss

Past due and impaired
Current
31 – 60 days
61 – 90 days
> 90 days
Total
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the original invoice amount less an allowance for impairment.

We regularly review the collectability of trade receivables, and apply an impairment provision when there is evidence that the Group won’t be able to collect. When we identify individual
debts that are uncollectible, we write them off.
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms. A

(c) The Group, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants,

provision for impairment of $622,000 (2016: $658,000) has been raised to cover

has previously lent funds to the Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) as agreed

expected uncollectible debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

under a Memorandum of Understanding. On 30 June 2017, a deed of variation was

balances.

signed which in effect gave rise to a recoverable loan receivable of $150,000.

The Group has no receivables with renegotiated credit terms that would have been

On 7 July 2017, AAT repaid $149,999 and the Group reduced the loan outstanding

past due under the original terms and conditions.

to $1.

(b) Current non-trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally
payable at call. There are no non-trade receivables that are past due at the reporting date.

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Freehold property – at depreciated fair value

62,125

58,000

Furniture and equipment – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

5,154
(4,322)
832

Computer equipment – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation

Motor vehicles – at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

4,928
(4,086)
842

5,769
(4,781)

5,274
(3,802)

988

1,472

9,537
(8,519)

9,493
(7,388)

1,018

2,105

10,724
(4,435)

7,908
(3,692)

6,289

4,216

149
(78)

187
(101)

71

86

71,323

66,721
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment:

Freehold property
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Revaluation increment
Depreciation expense

Furniture and equipment
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

Computer equipment
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Reclass from intangibles
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Additions
Depreciation expense

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Additions
Depreciation

92

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

58,000
4,994
(869)

55,387
3,370
(757)

62,125

58,000

842
405
(3)
(412)

1,267
22
(447)

832

842

1,472
54
375
(5)
(908)

1,172
1,124
(824)

988

1,472

2,105
43
(1,130)

2,528
767
(1,190)

1,018

2,105

4,216
2,964
(891)

4,755
308
(847)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Motor vehicles
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

6,289

4,216

86
(15)

6
94
(6)
(8)

71

86

Total
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Reclass from intangibles
Additions
Increment in freehold property
Disposals
Depreciation expense

66,721
54
3,787
4,994
(8)
(4,225)

65,115
2,315
3,370
(6)
(4,073)

Carrying amount at end of financial year

71,323

66,721

Valuing freehold property

Determining depreciation

Freehold property is measured at fair value, less:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, other than land which is not depreciated, is

• accumulated depreciation on buildings and building plant; and

calculated on a straight-line basis.

• any impairment losses recognised after the date of revaluation.
Fair value is determined by the Directors, after considering:

The depreciation rates applied consider an asset’s remaining useful life and estimated
residual value.

• the most recent external valuation; and
• current market conditions and estimates.
We appointed an external valuer McGees Property (NSW) Pty Ltd to perform an
independent valuation this financial year.
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The cost of fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises is amortised over their estimated

(II) Revaluations

useful lives, or the remainder of the lease term, whichever is shorter.

Following initial recognition at cost, freehold property is carried at a revalued amount. This
is the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent:

Useful lives are:

• accumulated depreciation on buildings and plant; and

Freehold property:

• accumulated impairment losses.

Building

50 years

Building plant

25 years

To ensure the carrying amount represents fair value, we revalue freehold property assets
annually. External valuations are conducted once every three years.

Furniture

10 years

Office equipment

5 years

Generally, revaluation increments are credited to the revaluation reserve included in the

Computer equipment

3 years

Members’ funds section of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The exception

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

10 years

is where it reverses a revaluation decrement for the same asset that was previously

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

Lease term

recognised in profit or loss. In this case, the increase will be recognised in profit or loss.

Motor vehicles

3 years

Conversely, devaluation decrements are recognised in profit or loss, except where they

At the end of each financial year, we review our assets’ residual values, useful lives and

offset a previous revaluation increment for the same asset. In these cases, a decrement

depreciation methods, and adjust them if appropriate. No adjustments were made in the

is debited directly to the property revaluation reserve, up to the credit balance in the

current or previous financial year.

revaluation reserve for that asset.

(I) Impairment
We review the carrying values of plant and equipment for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are recognised as expenditure in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Freehold property is measured at revalued amounts. As such, impairment losses on
freehold property are treated as a revaluation decrement, although only up to the amount
of existing revaluation surpluses.
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Valuation techniques, inputs and processes
This table shows the valuation technique and inputs used to measure the freehold property’s fair value:

Valuation technique

Key inputs

Market approach:
Land is valued based on:
• comparable property sales transactions; and
• management’s updated assessment of valuation parameters.

• Comparable property sales values.
• Allowance for location, topography, construction, age, condition and size.
• Observation of relevant market conditions during the year and at the time of valuation
including interest rates, stamp duty and depreciation rates.

Depreciated replacement cost (DRC):
Buildings and plant are valued based on their DRC. This is calculated as the current
replacement cost of the asset, less accumulated depreciation, reflecting the already
consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence of the asset.
The highest and best use of the freehold property is considered to be its current use.

Fair value hierarchy
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. That is because significant adjustments need to be made to the observable data of comparable
properties, and require the Directors to exercise judgment.
Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
There were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current or previous financial year.

Sensitivity analysis on unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs

Sensitivity of fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs

Allowances for location, topography, construction, age, condition, and size as determined
by the directors. The cumulative net impact of these adjustments is -2.41% to 2.20% of the
total value of the freehold property.

Significant increases/(decreases) in these adjustments would result in a higher/(lower) fair
value of freehold property.

(III) Disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment will be written off when:
• no further future economic benefits are expected from its use; or
• it is disposed of.
Any gain or loss that arises from the disposal of an asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year the asset is disposed of.
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8. INTANGIBLES
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

19,373
(10,998)

13,427
(8,194)

8,375

5,233

Reconciliation of intangibles
Carrying amount at start of financial year
Reclass to computer equipment
Additions
Amortisation and impairment expense

5,233
(54)
7,171
(3,975)

4,690
2,833
(2,290)

Carrying amount at end of financial year

8,375

5,233

Computer software
Less: accumulated amortisation

About intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible

Changes in the asset’s expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of the

assets are carried at cost less:

asset’s future economic benefits, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period

• any accumulated amortisation; and

or method. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in

• any accumulated impairment losses.

profit or loss in the expense category, consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangibles are amortised as follows:

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. The amortisation
period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least every
financial year end.

• Computer software 3–5 years
Gains or losses arising from a disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. They
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is disposed of.
The Group has no intangible assets assessed as having an indefinite life.
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9. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Capital work-in-progress

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

1,744

2,450

Capital work-in-progress is software undergoing development, that is expected to be completed in the next financial year and is recorded at cost less any known impairment.

10. FEES IN ADVANCE

Members’ fees
CA Program, training course fees and other

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

48,091
8,462

45,969
8,272

56,553

54,241

Fees in advance are carried at the original invoice amount for goods and services to be provided after the year end. It includes membership fees, CA Program enrolment fees, and
training and development course fees.
The fees in advance balance primarily relates to fees from members and provisional members, for services that will be delivered in the financial year ending 30 June 2018. The amounts
received are not expected to be refunded and will be recognised as revenue in the financial year ending 30 June 2018.

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current
Trade payables
Other payables and lease liabilities

Non-current
Lease liabilities

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

4,171
5,083

7,868
5,423

9,254

13,291

1,297

1,235

1,297

1,235
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11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Trade payables are carried at cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services

Other payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services

provided to the Group before the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when

received, regardless of whether they are billed to the Group. Payables are normally settled

the Group becomes obliged to make payment for these goods and services in the future.

on 30-day terms and incur no interest.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on no longer than a
30-day term.

12. PROVISIONS

Current
Employee entitlements

Non-current
Employee entitlements
Leasehold make good provision

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

5,254

4,592

5,254

4,592

428
374

505
519

802

1,024

Provisions are recognised when:

(b) Long service leave

• there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. It

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

is measured as the present value of expected future payments for services provided by

to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures,
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields

(a) Annual Leave

at the reporting date based on Australian Corporate Bonds with terms to maturity and

Liabilities for annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date,

currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employees’ services up
to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. Any annual leave expected to be settled beyond 12 months of the
reporting date is measured at the present value of expected future payments.

98

< <<

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2017

12. PROVISIONS (continued)
(c) Termination benefits

Depending on when we expect to settle the liability, employee termination benefits are

Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised in the provision for employee benefits

measured as:

when:

• within 12 months – the amount we expect to pay at the settlement date;

• the Group is demonstrably committed to terminate the employee; or

• more than 12 months after the reporting date – a discounted amount, using market

• where an offer is made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

yields based on Australian Corporate Bonds that have terms to maturity and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
The Group has no provision for termination benefits at year end.

13 COMMITMENTS

Operating leases – office space
Within one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

3,894
11,632
3,282

3,798
14,091
2,639

18,808

20,528

801
162
-

1,887
647
-

963

2,534

The leases are all non-cancellable operating leases.
Expenditure commitments
Within one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

Expenditure commitments relate to the Group’s IT software licence fees, subscriptions and contributions to universities for research.
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14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Indemnities for bank guarantees to the lessors of premises occupied under operating leases

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

945

1,058

2017
$0

2016
$0

333,210

317,000

23,040

24,221

356,250

341,221

-

-

15. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Audit services from EY Australia
Audit services from other EY Global entities
Total audit fee
Other services:
Consulting and other costs
The auditor also provided audit services to the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited on a complimentary basis.

The auditor charged $5,500 to the Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances for audit services and donated back $5,500 to
each fund.
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16. UNLISTED SHARES IN OTHER ENTITIES
The parent has an interest in the following corporations:
Name of corporation

Country of incorporation

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited

Percentage of ownership
2017

2016

Australia

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Singapore)
Private Limited

Singapore

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong

100%

100%

United Kingdom

100%

100%

CAANZ (UK) Limited
CA ANZ (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

100%

100%

Chartered Professional Accountants Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand has control of:
• Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Singapore) Private Limited

Accountants Scholarship Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund.

• Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Hong Kong) Limited

The purpose of these funds is to provide scholarships and financial assistance to people in

• CAANZ (UK) Limited

financial hardship.

• CA ANZ (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
• New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA)
• Chartered Professional Accountants Pty Ltd.
These entities results have been consolidated into these consolidated financial statements

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants
Scholarship Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund have not
been consolidated as the Group does not have the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of return from these entities.

at 30 June 2017.
The parent’s results are materially consistent with the consolidated financial results,
therefore separate parent disclosures are not included.
Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited is the Trustee for Chartered
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values
The estimated net fair values of financial assets and liabilities held at the balance date are represented by their carrying amounts. The net fair value of a financial asset or liability is:
• the amount at which the asset could be exchanged; or
• the liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties, after allowing for transaction costs.
Financial assets and liabilities by categories:
Notes

Total
$’000

Loans and
receivables
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

5
6
6

44,135
11,741
342

44,135
11,741
342

-

Total current financial assets

56,218

56,218

-

Total financial assets

56,218

56,218

-

2017
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other receivables and loan receivables

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

11

(9,254)

-

(9,254)

Non-current financial liabilities
Lease liabilities

11

(1,297)

-

(1,297)

Total financial liabilities

(10,551)

-

(10,551)

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

45,667

56,218

(10,551)

52,130
13,595
300

52,130
13,595
300

-

66,025

66,025

-

2016
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Total current financial assets
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Notes

Total financial assets
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

11

Non-current financial liabilities
Lease liabilities

11

Total financial liabilities
Net financial assets/(liabilities)

Total
$’000

Loans and
receivables
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
$’000

66,025

66,025

-

(13,291)

-

(1,235)

-

(1,235)

(14,526)

-

(14,526)

66,025

(14,526)

51,499

(13,291)

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Market risk

The Group’s principal financial instruments are comprised of cash, receivables and

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

payables.

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The main components of market risk to the

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks in accordance with its policies. The
objective of the policies are to support the delivery of the Group’s financial targets while
protecting future financial security.

Group are interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk
This is the risk that movements in variable interest rates will affect financial performance

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and

by increasing interest expenses or reducing interest income. The Group is exposed to

liquidity risk.

floating interest rates on its cash and fixed interest rates on its term deposits. The effect

We use different methods to measure and manage these risks, including:
• monitoring levels of exposure to interest rates;
• conducting ageing analysis and monitoring specific credit balances to manage credit
risk; or
• monitoring liquidity risk through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.
The Board reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks.

of a reasonably possible change in interest rates will result in an immaterial amount of
change to interest revenue.

Currency risk
This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in exchange rates. We manage currency risk of our New Zealand
operations by regularly monitoring the liquidity requirements and forecasting expected
foreign currency cashflows. We are also exposed to currency risk from our foreign
operations in Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and the United Kingdom. However, at 30
June 2017, these activities were immaterial and the risk is minimal.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Credit risk

The Group made related party payments and receipts to certain parties, including

Management believes that the Group does not have a concentration of credit risk. The

partners or employees of Director-related entities. Payments included:

Group’s exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the cash at bank and short-

• gifts and fees to guest speakers at training and development events;

term deposits which are held with financial institutions with a credit rating of AA- or better

• author, group leader, reviewer, exam setting and exam marking fees for the Chartered

and receivables which are generally high volume and low individual amount.

Accountants Program modules;
• reviewer fees for the Quality Review Program; and

Liquidity risk
This is the risk that, due to our operational liquidity requirements, the Group:
• will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the due date;
• will be forced to sell financial assets at a value less than what they are worth; or
• may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.
The Group receives a substantial part of its cash inflows at the beginning and end of

• consulting services.
All payments and receipts to all parties were made on arm’s length commercial terms and
conditions.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand incurred $82,961 (2016: nil) of legal
and consulting expenses on behalf of Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation

the financial year, and manages its expenditure within these cash inflows and approved

Limited.

funding arrangements.

The Group also provides complimentary accounting and administration services for

Most of the Group’s financial liabilities, such as payables and accruals to suppliers and

the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants

employees, are due within 30 days (other than annual or long-service leave provisions).
Other long-term liabilities are due in more than 12 months.
To help reduce liquidity risk, we have a liquidity policy which sets targets for the minimum
and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained.
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20. DIRECTOR, VICE PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES
(a) Details of key management personnel
(I) President and Vice Presidents
(III) Executives

Presidents
D Scammell FCA

Term completed 31 December 2016

L White FCA

Chief Executive Officer

C Crowley FCA

Appointed 1 January 2017

S Grant FCA

Head of Members

Vice Presidents

Resigned as CEO 31 May 2017

Interim CEO

1 June – 2 August 2017

J Stanton FCA

Appointed 1 January 2016

K Patterson

New Zealand Country Head

Resigned 19 April 2017

K Murphy FCA

Term completed 31 December 2016

P Vial CA

New Zealand Country Head

Appointed 20 April 2017

Appointed 1 January 2017

K Picard FCA

Chief Financial Officer

Resigned 31 October 2016

S Walker FCA

(II) Directors
Chairman
M Jack FCA
Board Members

J Paterson CA

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed 7 November 2016

D Breust

Chief Marketing Officer

Appointed 1 May 2016

L Morta

Chief Information Officer

J Dale FCA

Head of Education

Resigned 7 December 2016

J Abbott

Head of Education

Appointed 4 January 2017

Head of People and Culture

Transferred 3 January 2017
Appointed 4 January 2017

D McAteer

Appointed 1 August 2016

A Waters FCA

Term completed 31 December 2016

C Crooks

Head of People and Culture

M Long FCA

Appointed 1 January 2017

R Ward FCA

Head of Leadership and

P Stragalinos FCA

Appointed 1 January 2017

J Palermo FCA
L McCann
M Blake FCA

Advocacy
Executives are classified as the Chief Executive Officer and the Strategic Leadership Team
(SLT) who are the authorised key decision makers for the organisation.

M Forde FCA
N Paviour-Smith FCA
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20. DIRECTOR, VICE PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES (continued)
(IV) Compensation policy
Remuneration of the Directors is approved by the Council, based on recommendations

To ensure equity in our remuneration decisions, we use salary bands to establish

from the Nominations and Governance Committee as per the criteria noted below. The

remuneration ranges for jobs of similar value. The Group benchmarks jobs for job sizing

CEO and Strategic Leadership Team remuneration is considered by the Executive

using a well-established methodology that provides remuneration ranges for salary bands

Remuneration Committee with a recommendation put forward for Board approval. This

based on job size. In structuring remuneration ranges, we aim to remain competitive and

Committee also reviews the allocation of the remuneration pool for all employees. The

positioned appropriately for the scope and size of our operations. The CEO is entitled to a

Executive Remuneration Committee is a Committee of the Board and comprises three

base remuneration plus a risk component based on achieved approved KPIs.

members, currently Michael Forde (Chair), Murray Jack and Louise McCann. The Board
confirms the membership of the Committee and appoints the Chair annually. The Chair of
the Board is not eligible to be the Chair of the Executive Remuneration Committee.

To determine fees for Directors and Office bearers, external market benchmark data
from ProNed Australia Pty Ltd is reviewed and levels are approved the by the Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council. These fees are at the same level as
those paid in previous year.

(V) Compensation of Directors, Vice Presidents and executives for the year

Compensation of Directors, Vice Presidents and executives
Short-term benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

(VI) Loans to key management personnel
There are no loans between key management personnel and the Group.

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

4,098
-

4,071
-

4,098

4,071

(VII) Other transactions with key management personnel
and their related parties
There are no other transactions conducted between the Group and key management
personnel or their related parties, apart from those disclosed above relating to
compensation, that were conducted other than in accordance with normal employee
relationship on terms no more favourable than those reasonably expected under arm’s
length dealing with an unrelated person.
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21. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The parent’s By-laws provide that each Director and Officer will be indemnified against
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The exception is for fees in advance that have a settlement date, for the GST liability, that
occurs before the balance date (at which stage the liability will have already been settled).

any losses or expenses that they incur or become liable to pay by reason of any act or

Cash flows are included in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis.

deed done by the Director or Officer in discharging their duties, unless the act or deed

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities (which is

arises from the Director’s or Officer’s own wilful default.

recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority) is classified as part of operating

Furthermore, Directors and Officers are not liable for the following, unless it arises from

cash flows.

their own wilful default:

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable

• the acts of any person;

from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

• joining in any receipt or document;
• any act of conformity; or

(b) Foreign currency translation

• any loss or expense happening to the Group.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars at
30 June, at the rate of exchange at reporting date. These exchange differences are

22. MEMBERS AND MEMBERS’ LIABILITY
Total membership increased to 117,112 as of 30 June 2017 (2016: 116,838).
In terms of the organisation’s Supplemental Royal Charter and By-laws:
• members are not entitled to receive a dividend from the Group; and
• former members remain liable for all amounts they owed the Group at the time they
ceased to be a member.

23. SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Between the end of the financial year and the date of this Financial Report there has
been no item, transaction or material or unusual event that is likely, in the opinion of the
Directors, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, or the Group’s state of affairs
in future financial years.

(a) Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
• where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority. In this case, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of
the asset, or as part of the expense item, as applicable;
• 0n receivables and payables which are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
For all fees in advance that are subject to GST, a liability for GST payable is raised.
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Directors’ declaration
The Directors of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand declare that the financial statements and notes set out on pages 86 to 107, which have been prepared as required
under the By-laws of the organisation:
(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
(b) present fairly the financial position of the entity as at 30 June 2017 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the Directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

M Jack FCA

M Blake FCA

Director

Director

Sydney, 28 September 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
OPINION

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

We have audited the financial report of Chartered Accountants Australia and

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

New Zealand (“CA ANZ”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group), which comprises

significance in our audit of the financial report of the current year. These matters were

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the Consolidated

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our

Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and

opinion thereon, but we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated

matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the

context.

Directors’ declaration.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects,

Audit of the Financial Report section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2017, and its consolidated

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to

financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in

our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report. The results of

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial report.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia.
We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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VALUATION OF THE ERSKINE STREET, SYDNEY PROPERTY
Why significant

How our audit addressed the matter

The carrying value of the Erskine Street, Sydney property at the reporting date is $62.1

To audit the capitalisation of development costs, we:

million and constitutes approximately 43.5% of total assets on the Consolidated Statement

• assessed the eligibility of a sample of development costs for capitalisation as an

of Financial Position. As detailed in note 7 to the financial report, this property is measured
at fair value which has been valued using market-based estimates.
An external qualified valuer was engaged by the Directors to conduct a formal valuation.
This is a key audit matter because of the size of the asset and the judgment involved in the

intangible asset under AASB 138 Intangible Assets;
• tested on a sample basis, costs capitalised to underlying evidence including invoices or
statement of work from external suppliers;
• considered whether development projects were still expected to deliver sufficient
positive economic benefits to the business upon their completion; and

valuation.

• considered whether amortisation rates reflected economic lives.

How our audit addressed the matter

Information other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report

We considered the competence and independence of the third party valuer by reference
to their qualifications and experience.
We involved our real estate valuation specialists to assess the methodology applied in the
valuation and the assumptions applied within, which included the consideration of external

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s Annual
Report, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s Annual Report is expected to be

market data.

made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

We agreed physical land and building attributes to supporting documentation.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly

We assessed the development of surrounding properties around the Erskine Street

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

precinct and compared this against the Group’s valuation.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other

CAPITALISATION OF DEVELOPMENT COSTS

the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge

Why significant
As disclosed in note 8 to the financial report, the Group capitalises eligible product
development costs upon meeting the criteria set out in Australian Accounting Standard –
AASB 138 Intangible Assets. Capitalised development costs amount to $7.1 million as at
30 June 2017.

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report
The Directors of the Group are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair

Due to the magnitude of this balance and the judgments involved in determining which

presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due

costs may be capitalised both at inception and throughout the life of the project, this was

to fraud or error.

considered to be a key audit matter.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of

as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s

of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or

the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial
report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Ernst & Young

Mike Wright
Partner
Sydney
28 September 2017
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